Public Document Pack

sir ddinbych %
de"bigﬁgﬂlfs -

To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 9 December 2020

Direct Dial: 01824712568

e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on TUESDAY,
15 DECEMBER 2020 BY VIDEO CONFERENCE.

PLEASE NOTE: DUE TO THE CURRENT RESTRICTIONS ON TRAVEL AND THE
REQUIREMENT FOR SOCIAL DISTANCING THIS MEETING WILL NOT BE HELD
AT ITS USUAL LOCATION. THIS WILL BE A REMOTE MEETING BY VIDEO
CONFERENCE AND NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

Yours sincerely

G. Williams
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (Pages 3 - 4)

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

4 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 16)

To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 24 November 2020
(copy enclosed).



5 DCC COMMUNITY BENEFITS POLICY (Pages 17 - 42)

To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) seeking Cabinet
approval of the council’'s proposed Community Benefits Policy and
recommendations in support of its use.

6 FINANCE REPORT (Pages 43 - 146)

To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) detailing the
latest financial position and progress against the agreed budget strategy.

7  CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 147 - 150)

To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the
contents.

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS
EXCLUSION OF PRESS

It is recommended in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, that the Press be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item of business because it is likely that
exempt information as defined in paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of
the Act would be disclosed.

8 ASBESTOS REMOVAL CONTRACT AWARD (Pages 151 - 158)

To consider a confidential report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead
Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed)
seeking Cabinet approval to award a works contract to a licensed Asbestos
Removal Contractor with immediate effect.

MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Hugh Evans Councillor Tony Thomas
Councillor Bobby Feeley Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill
Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts Councillor Brian Jones
Councillor Richard Mainon Councillor Mark Young
COPIES TO:

All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils



Agenda Item 2
sir ddinbych t%
B’

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 County Council

Code of Conduct for Members

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

I, (name)

a *member/co-opted member of Denbighshire County Council
(*please delete as appropriate)

CONFIRM that | have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part
Il of the Council's Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the

following:-
(*please delete as appropriate)

Date of Disclosure:

Committee (please specify):

Agenda Item No.

Subject Matter:

Nature of Interest:

(See the note below)*

Signed

Date

*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘l am the owner of land adjacent to the application for
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or ‘My husband / wife is an employee of the company which
has made an application for financial assistance’.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

CABINET

Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held by video conference on Tuesday, 24 November
2020 at 10.00 am.

PRESENT

Councillors Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for the Economy and Corporate
Governance; Bobby Feeley, Lead Member for Well-being and Independence; Huw
Hilditch-Roberts, Lead Member for Education, Children’s Services and Public
Engagement; Brian Jones, Lead Member for Waste, Transport and the Environment;
Richard Mainon, Lead Member for Corporate Services and Strategic Direction; Tony
Thomas, Lead Member for Housing and Communities; Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead
Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets, and Mark Young, Lead Member
for Planning, Public Protection and Safer Communities

Observers: Councillors Joan Butterfield, Meirick Davies, Alan James, Gwyneth Kensler,
Peter Scott, Rhys Thomas and Emrys Wynne

ALSO PRESENT

Chief Executive (JG); Corporate Directors Communities (NS) and Economy Public Realm
(GB); Heads of Service: Legal, HR and Democratic Services (GW), Finance and Property
(SG), Head of Community Support Services (PG), and Planning, Public Protection and
Countryside Services (EJ); Strategic Planning and Housing Manager (AL); Lead Officer
(Community Housing (GD); Business Information Team Manager (CB); Scrutiny
Coordinator (RE); Business Coordinator: Leader's Office (SE), and Committee
Administrator (KEJ) together with David Wilson (Audit Wales)

The Local Democracy Reporter was also in remote attendance to observe proceedings.
POINT OF NOTICE
Due to the current restrictions on travel and requirement for social distancing as a result of
the coronavirus pandemic the meeting was held remotely by video conference and was
not open to the general public. All members had been given the opportunity to attend as
observers and the Local Democracy Reporter had also been invited to observe.
1 APOLOGIES

There were no apologies.
2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

No declarations of interest had been raised.

3 URGENT MATTERS

No urgent matters had been raised.

Page 5



MINUTES
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 20 October 2020 were submitted.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2020 be received
and confirmed as a correct record.

FINAL GROWTH DEAL

Councillor Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for Economy and Corporate
Governance presented the report seeking Cabinet's endorsement of the key
documents required to reach the Final Deal Agreement for the North Wales Growth
Deal for submission to Council for formal approval.

The report included some background regarding previous approvals of all partners
leading up to the current position. The North Wales Economic Ambition Board
(NWEAB) were committed to achieving Final Deal Agreement with the UK and
Welsh Governments by the end of 2020 and the relevant documentation was
currently going through the democratic processes of each of the local authorities.
Cabinet and Council, along with all partners, had been asked to approve the
various documents which would enable the Final Growth Deal to be concluded.

The Leader reiterated the aim of the Growth Deal to build a more sustainable and
resilient economy in North Wales in partnership with public and private sectors,
supported by £240m funding from the UK and Welsh Governments over the next 15
years. The Growth Deal aimed to deliver investment of up to £1.1bn in the North
Wales economy to create 3,400 — 4,200 new jobs and generate £2 — £2.4bn in net
additional GVA by 2036. The Leader delivered a joint presentation with the
Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm; Head of Legal HR and Democratic
Services and Head of Finance covering the following areas of the Growth Deal —

e the Growth Vision and Growth Deal Portfolio of investment together with direct
benefits to the region including economic prosperity; creation of better quality
jobs and a more skilled workforce, and improvements in living standards

e the portfolio of programmes which related to (1) Low Carbon Energy; (2) Digital,
(3) Innovation in High Value Manufacturing; (4) Agrifood and Tourism, and (5)
Land and Property together with programmes not directly funded but supported
in relation to Skills and Employment and Transport

o illustrated the geographical spread of the fourteen projects identified with each
project delivering widespread benefits across the region ensuring a step change

e elaborated on the specific projects identified in Denbighshire which related to (1)
St. Asaph Business Park; (2) Former North Wales Hospital Site Denbigh; (3)
Llysfasi Carbon Neutral Farm Project, and (4) Bodelwyddan Key Strategic Site

o detailed the legalities of the Final Growth Deal Agreement between the NWEAB
and UK and Welsh Governments for delivery of the Deal which would be signed
on the basis of the portfolio business case and five programme business cases

e highlighted the financial considerations including the cost of the programme and
how it would be funded including partner contributions over the 15 year term
together with the annual partner contributions and the methodology behind the
calculations which for Denbighshire equated to a range of between £64k - £90k

Page 6



e reported upon the Governance Agreement 2 to take the partnership into the
implementation stage of the Growth Deal, continuing the governance model
adopted in Governance Agreement 1 and defining the relationship between the
Board and its partner organisations, the limits of delegation and accountability.

The detail of the Growth Deal had been widely scrutinised and had more recently
been subject to a Members Workshop. Councillor Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones,
Chair of Partnerships Scrutiny Committee had been unable to attend Cabinet and
requested the Leader read out her statement on scrutiny’s findings following
consideration of the Growth Deal on 5 November. In brief the Scrutiny Committee —

e acknowledged that while projects would be located in various areas across the
region they would all, to a greater or lesser extent, benefit the entire region

e agreed it was extremely important that the Deal moved forward to secure the
funding to deliver the projects and realise the anticipated economic benefits

e had been assured that the Governance Agreement was sufficiently robust and
had set out structures to protect all partners with transparent monitoring and
scrutiny arrangements to maintain accountability of the Board’s decision making

e had been supportive of the principles set out in the Scrutiny Protocol

e some concerns had been raised about the potential impact of Covid-19 and
Brexit on projects and the area’s future economic prosperity and resilience but it
was recognised that the Board had already identified those risks and were
monitoring them; it was felt that the Growth Deal could potentially provide some
security and support against any negative impacts in that regard

e had been of the view that the Growth Deal provided an excellent opportunity for
the region to realise its economic potential

e emphasised the need, once the Growth Deal Agreement had been approved, for
the Board to link its work to that of other high profile programmes, such as the
Northern Powerhouse, to maximise the benefit to the region.

On behalf of the Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Chamberlain-Jones recommended
Cabinet support the Final Growth Deal and recommend the proposals within the
documents for submission to Council for formal approval. The Leader thanked the
Scrutiny Committee for their hard work in scrutinising and challenging the detail of
the Growth Deal and for the assurance that could be taken from that work.

During the debate Cabinet members sought further clarification regarding various
elements of the documentation and the Leader and officers responded as follows —

e confirmed that the current potential creation of Corporate Joint Committees
(CJC) which were currently being consulted upon by the Welsh Government had
been taken into account within the legal agreement — it specifically set out that if
the law changed and CJCs were created, the decision as to whether or not the
existing model was transferred into a CJC was reserved to each of the six local
authorities to determine individually

e advised that in the reform legislation there would be a power for two or more
authorities to merge on a voluntary basis and if that were to happen then all of
the legal obligations that each of those bodies had individually before they
merged would fall to the obligations of the new body

Page 7



e Councillor Mark Young queried whether the council would need to declare an
interest in any land owned by them earmarked for development given that they
would gain from any subsequent investment and he was assured that, as a
partner body, the council would still be able to participate in discussions and
there would be no need to declare any prejudicial interest on that basis

e there had been political commitment to the £240m government funding and
discussions with both governments had been ongoing on matters of detail with
no indication that the funding commitment would be withdrawn. However there
was no legal commitment to providing those funds until the Deal was signed

e explained the funding calculations for partner contributions confirming that
region wide projects were equally funded but for individual projects for which
specific partners would receive greater benefit (building/asset etc.) they would
be expected to pay for the borrowing requirement associated with that project

e acknowledged the difficulties of future proofing particular projects over the 15
year term of the Growth Deal, particularly in areas such as digital infrastructure,
which had been identified as a risk. It was accepted that some flexibility would
be required within the project and programme management with some
adaptations to reflect changing circumstances which would be monitored over
time, and Cabinet and Council would also have a role in that regard. However it
was hoped that the projects would be future proofed so far as possible with a
forward looking approach in terms of future requirements such as the green
agenda and decarbonisation, new skills and jobs fit for the modern age.

Cabinet acknowledged the complex and lengthy process leading to the Final
Agreement stage and paid tribute to the hard work of all those involved within that
process and the development of robust arrangements going forward. Cabinet was
satisfied that the clear information provided in terms of the portfolio of programmes
and projects; financial considerations and affordability, and governance
arrangements had demonstrated all those elements had been considered and
addressed and assurance had also been taken from scrutiny’s work in that regard.
Councillor Thompson-Hill added that funding to cover the additional costs had been
identified providing assurances that the financial element could be covered.

The Leader invited questions from non-Cabinet members and, together with the
relevant officers, responded to the issues raised as follows —

e officers agreed to consider the points raised by Councillor Meirick Davies
regarding how the information was presented for ease of use

e the expectation was for the digital programme to be delivered early on within the
process and work would be carried out to develop capacity in the private sector
which would be encouraged by the significant investment proposed in that area

e the environmental and ecology impact of specific projects would be considered
as part of statutory processes around planning permissions and the proposals
had also been aligned with well-being goals and suitable developments

e the procurement approach had been detailed in the overarching business plan
with an emphasis on encouraging and supporting improved access to regional
and local SMEs and given the aim to benefit the local economy, that concept
had been built into the overall proposal to ensure local companies benefitted
and helped to deliver that investment; with regard to post Brexit the existing

Page 8



procurement regulations still applied and work would continue within those legal
restrictions and parameters as applicable as and when the rules changed

e cycle lanes had not been included as a specific project within the bid but would
be dealt with at a strategic level across the region within the transport
programme and members were reminded there were other local funding
streams available for local authorities to deliver local expectations of that nature.

RESOLVED that Cabinet —

(@) formally endorses and recommends that the Council approves the
Overarching Business Plan as the document that sets out the arrangements
to deliver the North Wales Growth Deal as the basis for entering into the
Final Deal Agreement and acceptance of the Grant Funding Letter with the
UK and Welsh Governments;

(b)  formally endorses the provisions in Governance Agreement 2 relating to
executive functions, recommends that Council approves the provisions
relating to non-executive functions, and that it specifically adopts the
delegations and Terms of Reference in “Governance Agreement 2: Appendix
17 thereof as the basis for completing the Final Deal Agreement and
acceptance of the Grant Funding Letter with the UK and Welsh
Governments;

(c) formally endorses and recommends that the Council authorise the
accountable body, Gwynedd Council, to sign the Grant Funding Offer letter
on behalf of the Partners;

(d)  formally endorses and recommends that the Council recommend approval of
the method used to calculate the cost of borrowing notionally required to
facilitate the negative cash flow for the Growth Deal, and to include a
provision within the Council’s budget to pay this contribution and the
established core and supplementary contributions as set out in Governance
Agreement 2 (and in paragraphs 5.5 — 5.7 of the template report attached as
part of Appendix 1);

(e) that the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader, Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer be granted delegated authority to agree minor
changes to the documents with the Partners as necessary to complete the
agreement, and

)] that Cabinet confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the
contents of the Denbighshire County Council Well-being Impact Assessment
attached as Appendix 2 to the report as part of its consideration.

LLYS AWELON PHASE 2

Councillor Bobby Feeley presented the report seeking approval to release the

previously agreed £5m capital funding to contribute to the building of phase 2 Llys
Awelon Extra Care Housing in partnership with Grwp Cynefin.

Page 9



In 2010 the Council had jointly commissioned a 21 Unit Extra Care facility with
Grwp Cynefin which adjoined Awelon Care Home. The Care Home and Canolfan
Awelon had closed in 2020 in preparation for the second phase of the scheme
consisting of 35 additional units. The existing lease for phase 1 of the development
would be terminated and a new long term lease would be issued to Grwp Cynefin
for the whole site. The development would be taking an environmentally
sustainable approach with a view to achieving a BREEM Excellence rating. The
project would generate savings in the community care budgets and details of the
cost benefit of the £5m investment had been included as an appendix to the report.

Councillor Bobby Feeley explained the delay in progressing the project due to
Covid-19 and was pleased to now be in a position to proceed with the development.
Councillor Emrys Wynne asked that the reference within the Well-being Impact
Assessment (WIA) to Welsh first language be removed given that Grwp Cynefin
operated through the medium of Welsh and were fully bilingual. In response to that
request and other comments the Lead Member and Head of Community Support
Services agreed to change the Welsh Language reference in the WIA as requested,;
confirmed the food and mealtime arrangements for residents, and noted that whilst
there were plans to relocate the clinic on Mount Road there was another larger
surgery close by and the town had excellent health care facilities.

RESOLVED that Cabinet —

(@ confirms it has read, understood and taken account of the Well-being Impact
Assessment (Appendix 2 to the report) as part of its consideration, and

(b)  approves the release of the previously agreed £5m capital funding to
contribute to the building of phase 2 Llys Awelon Extra Care Housing.

DRAFT HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY

Councillors Tony Thomas and Bobby Feeley presented the joint report and draft
revised Housing and Homelessness Strategy for Cabinet’s consideration prior to
submission to full Council for approval.

The Housing Strategy was being reviewed and revised to form a new Housing and
Homelessness Strategy for the county and would provide a clear statement of the
council’s vision and aims for the next five years. Ensuring everyone was supported
to live in homes that met their needs was a key corporate priority and the revised
Strategy would provide a framework for all relevant council functions to successfully
address the priority. It was proposed to retain the 5 key themes within the current
Housing Strategy with the addition of a separate theme ‘Preventing and addressing
Homelessness’. The draft Strategy included a new action plan structured around
the 6 key themes and set out the actions required to deliver the desired outcomes.

Councillor Feeley welcomed the link made between housing and homelessness in
the draft Strategy and the approach taken to future working; she also thanked the
officers for their hard work in bringing the document together. The Leader also
supported the approach taken and queried how that work would link with the Local
Development Plan (LDP). Councillor Mark Young responded that the LDP sat

Page 10



alongside the Strategy and they would inform each other. He also reported upon
his attendance at meetings of the Strategic Housing and Homelessness Group and
positive discussions in that regard. In terms of next steps data evidence would be
considered by the Strategic Planning Group (SPG) early in the New Year which
would help inform the housing allocations moving forward in the LDP. In terms of
the draft Strategy the Strategic Planning and Housing Manager highlighted the
significant consultation carried out which had informed that document. If approved
by Council in December, delivery of the Strategy and action plan would be
overseen and monitored by the Strategic Housing and Homelessness Group and
regular reports would be submitted to scrutiny.

Councillor Meirick Davies felt that the Strategy should reflect the council’s future
aspirations such as increasing the current 10% stipulation for affordable housing.
Officers confirmed that the action plan referred to increasing the supply of
affordable homes and the current approach and thresholds in LDP policies would
be reviewed as part of the emerging LDP work. The 10% requirement referred to
market housing schemes but there was a range of ways which contributed to
affordable housing with the majority of affordable housing delivered via registered
social landlords and housing associations. The overall percentage of affordable
homes delivered from houses built in 2019/20 was 57%. The requirement for
affordable homes delivered on private sector housing schemes had to be based on
viability and be taken into account alongside other criteria and planning gain such
as ecology or education contributions. Councillor Mark Young reiterated the role of
the SPG in scrutinising the relevant data in order to agree a deliverable figure for
affordable housing in the private sector as part of the new LDP.

RESOLVED that Cabinet recommends the draft Housing and Homelessness
Strategy to Council for approval.

[At this point (11.45 am) the meeting adjourned for a ten minute refreshment break]
DENBIGHSHIRE AND FLINTSHIRE JOINT ARCHIVE PROJECT

[The Leader had to leave part way through this item and the Deputy Leader,
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill took the Chair for the remainder of the meeting.]

Councillor Tony Thomas presented the report seeking Cabinet’'s support for a
proposed new purpose built Passivhaus Archive building in Mold to house the
newly formed Denbighshire and Flintshire Joint Archive Service and associated
grant funding and match funding requirements.

The joint archive service had been formed to enable both councils to meet their
legislative responsibilities with regard to documents of historical importance and
create a more sustainable and improved service. The joint service currently
operated over two sites in Hawarden and Ruthin (Gaol). An NLHF Heritage Grant
Horizons bid had been developed to fund a new purpose built building in Mold and
an associated 3-year activity plan. The site had been selected from a site feasibility
study conducted by an independent consultant. The report made the case for the
new build; detailed the financial considerations, and proposals for Ruthin Gaol.

Page 11



Councillor Thomas highlighted the council’s statutory responsibilities to safeguard
its historical items and the current difficulties faced in that regard given capacity
issues, the state of the current facilities and the substantial investment required
going forward. The proposals would still allow for an archive presence in Ruthin
with remote access provision from all libraries which would strengthen the position
and provide ease of access to all residents. There was also a commitment to
improving the heritage offer at Ruthin Gaol (using the space vacated by the archive
service) with a view to doubling the current 12000 visitors to the site. There had
been positive indications regarding the bid to the NLHF Heritage Horizon Fund but
no guarantee of final success. If successful a new purpose built facility could be
delivered to house the joint archive service which would benefit all communities and
a full commitment given to enhancing provision at the Gaol.

Cabinet debated the merits of the recommendations at length. There had initially
been some reluctance and reservations regarding the proposals for the service
when they were first put forward but they had largely been addressed and overall
Cabinet was supportive of the recommendations, particularly having considered the
challenges faced in terms of preservation and storage of historical documents and
artefacts together with the detrimental impact on service provision and significant
additional cost implications if the recommendations were not pursued. Whilst there
had been some reluctance about losing the facility at Ruthin Gaol and moving
outside of the county Cabinet also considered the sharing of services to be the right
one in terms of sustainability and modernisation opportunities to ensure legislative
duties were met and to preserve the local history and heritage of the area. It was
also noted that the proposal would provide a wider access to information within
Denbighshire through the library service together with a part time presence in
Ruthin Gaol and greater access for schools which should encourage a wider
audience. Cabinet was also pleased to note the planned enhancement and
expansion of Ruthin Gaol as a consequence which would also benefit the county.

The Business Information and Team Manager responded to questions raised by
Councillor Mark Young as follows —

e whilst resources had been concentrated on the bid application it was agreed that
a contingency plan was required in the event the bid was unsuccessful and work
in that regard would begin shortly

e the Business Improvement and Modernisation Service would be building a £65k
reserve as a one off cost in line with the indicative costs provided in order to
progress the proposed plans for expanding the heritage attraction at Ruthin
Gaol. The Heritage Team were also looking to apply for some external funding
to further enhance those offerings.

The Leader invited questions/comments from non-Cabinet members and during
discussion Councillors Meirick Davies and Gwyneth Kensler expressed support for
the proposals given it would preserve important documents and heritage for future
generations. However Councillors Huw Hilditch-Roberts and Emrys Wynne, whilst
accepting the reasoning behind the proposals, voiced concerns over Ruthin losing
the archive service and sought clarification and reassurance on a number of issues
in the report including plans for enhancing the heritage attraction at Ruthin Gaol,
service provision for communities and the role of libraries, and the offer for schools.

Page 12



In responding to those and other issues raised during the course of debate, the
Lead Member and Business Information and Team Manager —

acknowledged the importance of ensuring Denbighshire’s Welsh Language
Standards were maintained going forward within the joint service and provided
assurances to members in that regard

reiterated the benefits of a successful bid in terms of service provision and
enhancements but in the event that the bid was unsuccessful the council would
face major challenges in terms of maintaining service provision and the
preservation of its historical records and would incur significant additional cost
explained that Ruthin Gaol was not a suitable building to house the archive
service with significant running/maintenance costs and operational inefficiencies
and the proposals provided an opportunity to use the space vacated by the
archive service to expand the heritage attraction and there were talks with the
Natural Trust around the ongoing operation of the site as a tourist attraction
advised that if the grant monies were secured Denbighshire would contribute
40% of the match funding component and Flintshire would contribute 60%
referred to plans for an outreach provision at HM Berwyn Prison in Wrexham as
part of an educational rehabilitation approach

elaborated upon the feasibility study carried out of six potential sites (three in
each county) to ascertain the best location for the new building which had
identified Mold as the best option for the joint service going forward

confirmed that work was required going forward to ensure a fair allocation of
resource provision of the joint service across both counties including for schools
provided assurances regarding the £65k reserve to fund the proposed
developments at Ruthin Gaol with Cabinet having previously agreed that a
reserve be established and built up by 2025 specifically for that purpose
explained that permanent outreach provision of archive services utilising the
library network was a key part of the joint service going forward and work was
currently ongoing with libraries in both counties to ascertain the most
appropriate service provision with a host of different offerings being considered
noted that archives would be available digitally and the proposals also included
a part time archive presence at Ruthin Gaol for users of the service
acknowledged that whilst schools could benefit from a flexible and learning
focused archive building there were challenges in terms of transport and some
consideration was being given to providing outreach services to schools for
which a joint service would provide better opportunities.

At the close of debate Councillor Wynne reiterated his concerns over the loss of the
archive facility from Ruthin together with other uncertainties around the proposals.

RESOLVED that Cabinet —

)

(b)

agrees to the Joint Archive Service submitting a bid to the next stage (Round
1) of the NLHF Heritage Horizon Fund;

notes the potential call on £2,034,521 of Council funds in order to deliver the
new archive centre. This is subject to the bid being successful at the Round

Page 13



1 stage of the NLHF grant application process and receipt of a form offer of
funds, and

(c) endorses the approach to Ruthin Gaol and the planned expansion of the
heritage attraction, as outline in section 4.8 of the report.

FINANCE REPORT

Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report detailing the latest financial
position and progress against the agreed budget strategy as outlined below —

e the net revenue budget for 2020/21 was £208.302m (£198.538m in 2019/20)

e an overspend of £5.492m was forecast for service and corporate budgets (the
overspend did not assume receipt of further ‘income loss’ grants or claims)

e highlighted current risks and assumptions relating to individual service areas
together with the financial impact of coronavirus and Leisure ADM budgets

e detailed required savings and efficiencies of £4.448m agreed including
corporate savings relating to triennial actuarial review of Clwyd Pension Fund
(E2m); 1% schools savings (£0.692m); service savings (£1.756m)

e provided a general update on the Capital Plan, Housing Revenue Account and
Housing Capital Plan.

Councillor Thompson-Hill elaborated upon the latest financial position in detalil,
particularly with regard to the financial impact of Covid-19 including grant funding
secured to date and the position on claims for the council. He also highlighted risks
around Council Tax Yield and the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS). The
Welsh Government (WG) had recently announced a small element of additional
funding across Wales for the CTRS. The Head of Finance added that there was a
projected reduction of 1.5% in the Council Tax Yield and the WG had agreed to
look into the possibility of funding provision in that regard. The risks around social
care budgets, school transport and waste services were also highlighted.

The following issues were raised during the ensuing debate —

e Councillor Brian Jones was keen to ensure that all were aware of the work of the
council in maximising funding opportunities to reduce the projected overspend
and mitigate the impact of Covid-19 on the authority’s finances. The Lead
Member for Finance confirmed WG funding announced earlier in the year had
included additional funding for loss of income for the remainder of the financial
year. Most of the Quarter 1 claim had been met and the Quarter 2 claim was
currently being evaluated. Claims would also be made for Quarters 3 and 4 at
the appropriate time and the authority would continue to claim from any funding
streams available to them in order to maximise income

e Councillor Mark Young was sympathetic to those facing financial difficulties and
questioned the approach taken in the recovery of Council Tax. Assurances
were provided that the council had a balanced view with a sensitive and flexible
approach taking into account individual circumstances. Whilst little recovery
action had been taken during the first six months the council was now engaging
with residents and working with Citizens Advice Denbighshire to target help

Page 14



10

where needed but also to ensure recovery of arrears where appropriate. There
was an expectation from Welsh Government to undertake that recovery work

e in response to questions from Councillor Meirick Davies it was confirmed that
the old school sites in Clocaenog and Cyffylliog were owned by the council and
future use of the sites were currently being considered in accordance with the
council’s disposals policy. With regard to Ysgol Llanbedr the basic principle of
the land exchange had been agreed as part of the original proposal in order to
deliver the new school and an update was provided on discussions for the future
use of the former school site, again in line with the council’s disposals policy.

RESOLVED that Cabinet note the budgets set for 2020/21 and progress against
the agreed budget strategy.

CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Cabinet forward work programme was presented for consideration and
members noted the following amendments —

e Contract Procedure Rules — moved from December to February
e Final Budget Proposals 2021/22 — January
e Welsh Government Covid Homelessness Grant — to be confirmed

RESOLVED that Cabinet’s forward work programme be noted.

The meeting concluded at 13.00 hrs.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

sir ddinbych
denbighzhireg

County Council

Report to Cabinet
Date of meeting 15™ December 2020

Lead Member / Officer  CllIr Julian Thompson-Hill, Deputy Leader and Lead Member for

Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets
Report author Karen Bellis, Community Benefits Manager

Title DCC Community Benefits Policy

1. What is the report about?
DCC Community Benefits Policy

1.1. Policy to support Denbighshire’s Community Benefits approach.

2. What is the reason for making this report?

2.1. Following presentation of Policy to Communities Scrutiny at 22nd Oct, to Senior
Leadership Team on 27" November, and the Member Area Groups
September/October cycle. A decision is required on approval and adoption of
this Policy.

3. What are the Recommendations?

3.1. That Cabinet approves the policy document and makes recommendations in

support of its use

3.2. That the Committee confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of

the Well-being Impact Assessment (attached) as part of its consideration.

Page 17



4. Report details

DCC Community Benefits Policy

4.1.1n June 2019 the DCC Programme Board for Young People and Housing approved
the creation of the Community Benefits Hub (CB Hub), along with the inclusion of
community benefits in all relevant contracts. The Hub will provide support, and
enable Services to include Community Benefits (CBs) in contracts at the earliest
opportunity. The commissioning cycle process is central to achieving best value
and outcomes for DCC spend and it is to be expected that by applying a CB
approach at an early stage this will go toward increasing value for DCC spend. A
CB Hub Officer was appointed in February 2020 and CB Hub manager appointed
in March. DCC Community Benefits Policy will support the work and actions of the
CB Hub in achieving intended outcomes and targets.

4.2.The Council spent £116m in 2017/18 so with a modest 1% CB return this could
generate £1.16m in new benefit per annum. This Policy will support the work of the
CB Hub, and the council officers it supports, to access such funding and benefits to
reinforce our corporate plan priorities that will help our communities to become
more independent and resilient. The Council delivers its services directly through
its own workforce, and through private and third sector organisations. The Council
procures a wide range of goods, services and works from over 4,500 suppliers,
service providers and contractors. The CB Policy will provide a framework for
internal and external stakeholders to be active in continued and developing
engagement allowing us to monitor and evaluate, learn lessons, measure impact,
and design fit for purpose CB planning the future. Policy will also support the CB
Hub to track, monitor and report on community benefit outcomes across the council
and become a means of assessing the strength, vitality and performance for the
Corporate Plan 2017-2022. This in turn will used to formulate strategies for
improvements and influence policy decisions. There could be opportunities to

involve local communities in the delivery of community benefits.

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?

5.1. Young People — by contributing to greater employment opportunities,

opportunities to develop skills in life and work through volunteering and

Page 18



community based activities, and provide access to effective career advice and

mentoring.

5.2. Connected Communities — Opportunities to work with partners to improve
outreach to communities, target those most likely to be digitally excluded so

they have the skills and means to use digital services

5.3. Environment — Increase the biodiversity quality of important habitats and
species across the county, raise the profile of the county as a place to visit in

order to capitalise on Denbighshire’s economic potential

5.4. Resilient Communities — Support people to plan and shape their communities,
provide easily accessible information that support people’s independence and

resilience, ensure people are involved in shaping and improving services

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

6.1. Adoption of DCC Community Benefits Policy does not require additional
funding.

6.2. Officers will be engaged at early stages to access CB Hub support for the

inclusion of Community Benefits at Business Case stage.

What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact
Assessment?

7.1.The Council spent £116m in 2017/18 so with a modest 1% CB return this could
generate £1.16m in new benefit per annum. This Policy will support the work of the
CB Hub, and the council officers it supports, to access such funding and benefits to
reinforce our corporate plan priorities that will help our communities to become

more independent and resilient.

7.2.The Council delivers its services directly through its own workforce, and through
private and third sector organisations. The Council procures a wide range of
goods, services and works from over 4,500 suppliers, service providers and

contractors.

7.3.The CB Policy will provide a framework for internal and external stakeholders to be
active in continued and developing engagement allowing us to monitor and

evaluate, learn lessons, measure impact, and design fit for purpose CB planning

Page 19



10.

11.

the future. Policy will also support the CB Hub to track, monitor and report on
community benefit outcomes across the council and become a means of assessing
the strength, vitality and performance for the Corporate Plan 2017-2022. This in
turn will be used to formulate strategies for improvements and influence policy

decisions.

7.4.There could be opportunities to involve local communities in the delivery of

community benefits.
What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny
and others?

8.1. Communities Scrutiny Committee, 22" October. The Committee resolved to
support the aims and objectives of the Policy

8.2. Senior Leadership Team (SLT), 27" November. SLT made no changes to the

Policy and suggested a focus on outreach to middle management.

Chief Finance Officer Statement

9.1. Section 6 indicates that there are no direct financial consequences of this
report. As no additional funds have been requested, it is assumed that any
impact will be contained within existing budgets.

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to
reduce them?

10.1. No risks have been identified

Power to make the decision

11.1. Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, and Section 111 of the
Local Government Act 1972.

Page 20



sir ddinbych
denbigpzhireg

oooooooooooo

Community Benefits Policy

October 2020
Page 21



Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

Contents
PUIPOSE @NG SCOPE ...ttt e e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e et e e et aaa s e aaeaeeeeeesassssaeeeeeeennnnes 3
= 7= Tod (o | {011 Lo O RPURPRRN 3
Creation of Community Benefit HUD ... 5
Community Benefits Within DCC..........uuiiii e 5
Welsh Government - definition of Community Benefits ............cccooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, 6
Incorporating community benefits into DCC CoNtractS..........ocuuvvviiiiieeeieeeeiiiiiie e eeeeeeennns 6
Core Community Benefits — Evaluated...............uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaee 7
None Core Community Benefits - mandatory but not evaluated ...................coooevvriiinnnnnnn. 8
Voluntary Community BENeFitS .......coooiiiiiiiii e e 8
Community Benefits Monitoring and REPOItiNG..........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 8
Appendix 1. Section 106 agrEeMENTS ......ccoeeeeeieeeeeee e 10

Version 2 October 2020
2 Page 22


file:///C:/Users/kar97821/Documents/200206%20DCC_Web_Policies_%20CB%20Policy_Consultation_English%20KB%20version%203.docx%23_Toc41985640

Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

Purpose and Scope

“Enabling Communities to build resilience and

shape their own futures”

This policy applies to all relevant commissioning and procurement activities undertaken by
Denbighshire County Council. Officers are expected to consider the inclusion of
Community Benefits at the start of the commissioning cycle. Further help and advice is
available from the Community Benefits Hub or by contacting

Karen.Bellis@denbighshire.gov.uk .

Background

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires public services to work
with people, communities and each other to tackle challenges Wales faces now and in the
future. The Act’s aim is to improve the long term social, environmental and economic well-

being of Wales. It has been used to inform, and complements, our Corporate Plan 2017—

2022, strategies, and corporate values. Denbighshire County Council (DCC) is committed
to maximising Community Benefits in contract and service delivery. Going forward, the
application of this Policy will be driven and supported by the DCC Community Benefit Hub
(CB Hub).

This policy is based on the following principles:

e To consider the inclusion of Community Benefits in all relevant contracts and
maximise outcomes through the use of voluntary Community Benefits

e To increase the Community Benefit outcomes generated through the inclusion of
Community Benefit requirements within works, services and goods specifications

e To review and monitor the impact of Community Benefit activity, and to report via
the Corporate Procurement Annual Report; and to continually strive to improve our

performance.

Version 2 October 2020
3 Page 23


mailto:Karen.Bellis@denbighshire.gov.uk
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-plan/corporate-plan-overview.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-plan/corporate-plan-overview.aspx

Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

e To minimise the impact, and maximise the benefits, that our work has on the
environment and people around us.

e To integrate our Community Benefits considerations into all our business decisions.

In developing our policy for the first time we aim to deliver gradual but continuous
improvements in our performance every year. As a result, our approach will continue to
evolve as lessons are learned along the way. This Policy will be updated as per
introduction of any new applicable legislation, and will be reviewed through lessons

learned, every 3 years.

This Policy is relevant to the development and provision of Community Benefits aligned to

DCC Corporate Plan via three key routes:

e Economic Responsibility - focusing on practices that facilitate the long-term
growth of the County, whilst also meeting the standards set for ethical,
environmental practices within the council.

o The Economic and Community Ambition Strateqgy 2013-2023 sets out our

ambitions for Denbighshire's local economy and benefits that we expect to
achieve for our residents.
o The Conwy and Denbighshire Public Service Board (PSB) Wellbeing Plan

2018 — 2023 sets out the local objectives to improve the economic, social,

cultural and environmental well-being for the area by working to achieve the

7 national well-being goals.

e Environmental sustainability initiatives - generally focusing on the following
areas: limiting pollution where possible, reduction of carbon footprint, increasing
carbon sequestration and biodiversity improvement. As awareness of environmental
issues increases, organisations and businesses that take proactive steps to reduce
air, land and water pollution can increase their reputation as good corporate
citizens, while also benefiting society as a whole. In July 2019 DCC declared a
climate and ecological emergency — committing the organisation to achieve net
carbon zero, and be ecologically positive, by 2030. Welsh Government (WG) Policy:

Local Authorities (LAs) must be carbon neutral by 2030, Climate change strategy

Version 2 October 2020
4 Page 24


https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/corporate-strategies/economic-and-community-ambition-strategy.aspx
https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/well-being-plan/
https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/well-being-plan/
https://gov.wales/low-carbon-delivery-plan

Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

for Wales, Low carbon Delivery Plan this includes carbon emissions from DCC’s

supply chain and the Council is required to report its emissions to WG each year.

e Social initiatives — these include the donation of time, money and/or resources to

charities and organisations at local, national or international levels.

Whilst the names Community Benefits, and social value or requirements, are
interchangeable, the term ‘Community Benefits’ will be used throughout this policy.
This also will avoid confusion with Section 106 agreements, subject to the Town &
Country Planning Act 1990, which enables inclusion of ‘social requirements’ as a

condition of planning consent. (See Appendix 1)
Creation of Community Benefit Hub

In June 2019 the DCC Programme Board for Young People and Housing approved the
creation of the Community Benefits Hub, along with the inclusion of community benefits in
all relevant contracts. The inclusion of community benefits clauses will be considered
within relevant grants made by DCC. The Hub will provide support, and enable Services to
include CBs in contracts at the earliest opportunity. The commissioning cycle process is
central to achieving best value and outcomes for DCC spend and it is to be expected that
by applying a CB approach at an early stage this will go toward increasing value for DCC

spend.

Community Benefits within DCC

Long-term financial sustainability requires close collaborative and partnership working with
local, private and third sector organisations, and it is integral to the DCC approach. The
effect of joining policies and resources together has the potential for greater impact than
when these when delivered independently. Working together with a wide range of
organisations can be expected to increase innovation, efficiency and value whilst

delivering an equal or improved service.

Version 2 October 2020
5 Page 25


https://gov.wales/low-carbon-delivery-plan

Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

DCC Procurement Policy incorporates the Welsh Government definition and guidance, as

below:

Welsh Government - definition of Community Benefits

Community benefits is the term that has been adopted by Welsh Government in their

published guidance “Community Benefits Guidance Delivering Maximum Value for the

Welsh Pound” This provides formalised guidance and toolkits together with an

overview of the type of Community Benefits the public sector should be seeking to

deliver.

Completing the measurement tool kit meets the current reporting requirements in the

procurement policy statement.

Incorporating community benefits into DCC Contracts

The CB Hub will co-ordinate, produce and signpost to training, support and guidelines that
will be available to Services on how to include social, economic and environmental
requirements, as Community Benefits, when tendering DCC contracts. Training and
support will also be provided for contract managers on monitoring the delivery of all such
Community Benefits. A bespoke community benefit measurement portal will be introduced
to capture such benefits, and support reporting on the outcome and impacts of those
benefits.

In line with this Policy the CB Hub will:

¢ Design and deliver appropriate training and support to Services and contract
managers

e Encourage and enable officers of the Council to access relevant, appropriate and
up to date community benefits advice at the earliest stages of their project
development thinking, continuing through to contract management and monitoring
of the provision of the CBs

e Become the central point at which the CB related data across the Council is co-

ordinated, documented and reported

Version 2 October 2020
6 Page 26


https://www.sirddinbych.gov.uk/en/business/selling-to-the-council/procurement-and-commissioning-strategy.pdf
https://gov.wales/procurement-community-benefits-policy
https://gov.wales/procurement-community-benefits-policy
https://gov.wales/procurement-community-benefits

Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

We currently spend in the region of £100 million a year with private and third sector
organisations on the goods, services and works needed to deliver public services. Itis
our responsibility to manage this money efficiently and effectively to achieve Council

objectives. Our Procurement Strategy sets out how we are changing procurement and

commissioning within the Council.

Community Benefits can be used to build a range of economic, social, cultural or

environmental conditions into the delivery of council contracts and projects.

Community Benefits form part of the Specification, and suppliers will have a contractual
obligation to deliver these commitments. Community Benefit delivery will form part of the

key performance indicators of the contract (where relevant).

Community Benefits shall be considered and included in all relevant and appropriate
contracts with an aggregated threshold value as noted below:

e Works Contracts more than £100k

e Good/Services Contracts more than £25k

Core Community Benefits — Evaluated

The Core approach to Community Benefits is the inclusion of community benefit objectives
in the subject matter of the contract and as such CBs are evaluated as part of the tender
process:

e Where the Community Benefits being sought must relate to the subject matter of
the contract and must be included and scored as part of the evaluation procedure;
and (e.g. Targeted Employment and Training Initiatives).

e Arelevant percentage of the evaluation criteria will be attributed to Community

Benefits.

Version 2 October 2020
7 Page 27


https://www.sirddinbych.gov.uk/en/business/selling-to-the-council/procurement-and-commissioning-strategy.pdf

Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

None Core Community Benefits - mandatory but not evaluated

The non-core approach to Community Benefits is to use either the Conditions of Contract
or by inviting community benefits proposals. Conditions of Contract e.g. include

obligations to make payment to subcontractors within a specified timeframe

e Bidders will be asked to provide details of the Community Benefits they would
deliver through the contract (which may have been suggested by the contractor).
These non-core benefits would not be evaluated as part of the tender but should
still be included as contractual requirements and their delivery monitored as part of

the normal contract management process.

Voluntary Community Benefits

Voluntary Community Benefits do not form part of the contract as awarded and the council

would negotiate any CBs on a goodwill basis.

e The council may seek to encourage Voluntary Community Benefits for a particular
procurement activity. This will not form part of the evaluation, or indeed place a
contractual obligation on the supplier; however, those which are offered and
accepted by the Council will be reported in the CB Hub Annual report.

e Delivery of Voluntary Community Benefits will be monitored through management
information provided by the supplier and as part of the contract management

process

Community Benefits Monitoring and Reporting

Successful suppliers will be required to provide regular monitoring information outlining
Community Benefits delivery progress. This will enable DCC to monitor progress and
report on the Community Benefits achieved in the Annual DCC Procurement Report as
mandated by Welsh Procurement Policy Statement. A CB measurement and reporting on-
line portal will be used to capture metric reporting. Training and support will be given to

officers and supplier staff in effective use of the portal.

Version 2 October 2020
8 Page 28



Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

e Monitoring information will be reviewed by the CB Hub and relevant Strategic Leads
and outcomes will be recorded.

e A Community Benefits Steering Group of internal stakeholders will be created to
monitor and review overall Community Benefits outcomes on a regular basis.

e The CB Hub will produce DCC CB reporting in format and timescale as requested

by Welsh Government.

Version 2 October 2020
9 Page 29



Denbighshire County Council Community Benefits Policy

Appendix 1. Section 106 agreements

As Section 106 (S106) agreements are outside the scope of public procurement, S106

does not form part of the Community Benefits Policy. However, to ensure that wider

social, environmental and economic issues are taken into account the DCC CB Hub will

agree an information sharing mechanism with Planning (Local Planning Authority - LPA).

This communication process will share information on S106 agreements with the CB Hub.

This will enable the CB Hub to:

10

Create and maintain a central register of historic, current and future S106
agreements

Centrally co-ordinate reporting of triggers reached within S106 agreements, as
advised

Confirm S106 commitments are received, and document their allocation to relevant
themes e.g. Open Space, Education, Ecology etc.

Support, collate and co-ordinate monitoring of S106 commitment outcomes by the
relevant services

Produce a series of case studies for use as reference, and to identify and share
best practice

Identify potential for adding value to any procurement derived community benefit
and vice versa

Build a countywide picture of S106 impacts, and

Liaise with DCC Members and internal DCC stakeholders

Version 2 October 2020
Page 30



Cyngor

sir ddinbych &

Community Benefits Policy

Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 797

Policy to support the development and delivery of community benefits
within Denbighshire County Council via commissioning and procurement.
Also, policy will be basis for newly launched Community Benefits Hub
programme of work and activity.

Brief description:

Date Completed: Version: 0
Completed by:
Responsible Service: Legal, HR & Democratic Services

Localities affected by

the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by | Denbighshire County Council, its residents, commissioners, suppliers,
the proposal? local business, third sector & Educational establishments.

Was this impact
assessment completed | No
as a group?

Page 31



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

* * * ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 28 / 30.

Implications of the score

Continued internal and external stakeholder engagement is key to securing and delivering significant
and sustainable community benefits. We need to ensure that any benefits gained are going to be of
use and are to be valued by not only DCC (Members and officers) but also the community that we
serve.

The corporate plan 2017-2022 sets out our five corporate priorities designed around the WFG Act this
was developed on the back of the County Conversation which provided feed back from our residents.
We asked people to comment on what was good, bad, needed developing in the areas in relation to
the seven goals. This provided the priorities Denbighshire developed.

1. Housing = Community Cohesion, (environmental) Resilience & Global (energy efficient homes),
Prosperous (enabling people to settle in the area), equality (considerations of young and old people)
2. Connected communities — Cohesion, Prosperous, Equality, Healthier

3. Resilient communities — Cohesion, Equal, Healthier

4. Young People = Prosperous, Healthier

5. Environment - Prosperous, Resilient, Healthier

The Community Benefits Hub is now active (as of mid March 2020) and this policy will guide and
enable the CB Hub to offer practical and relevant support to officers during the commissioning and
procurement of goods and services, and also to undertake meaningful engagement with external
stakeholders.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive &EE;L R

A resilient Denbighshire Positive S : -.
A healthier Denbighshire Positive [IRHSREE L
A more equal Denbighshire Positive Langusge el !
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive A Wetes o e By
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Positive communities Walee
language Amors squal

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive e

Main conclusions

The Council spent £116m in 2017/18 so with a modest 1% CB return this could generate £1.16m in
new benefit per annum. This Policy will support the work of the CB Hub, and the council officers it
supports, to access such funding and benefitj:to reinforce our corporate plan priorities that will help
our communities to become more independdn8&}fd KR4ilient.



The Council delivers its services directly through its own workforce, and through private and third
sector organisations. The Council procures a wide range of goods, services and works from over
4,500 suppliers, service providers and contractors.

The CB Policy will provide a framework for internal and external stakeholders to be active in
continued and developing engagement allowing us to monitor and evaluate, learn lessons, measure
impact, and design fit for purpose CB planning the future. Policy will also support the CB Hub to
track, monitor and report on community benefit outcomes across the council and become a means of
assessing the strength, vitality and performance for the Corporate Plan 2017-2022. This in turn will
used to formulate strategies for improvements and

influence policy decisions.

There could be opportunities to involve local communities in the delivery of community benefits.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

¥ We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

I~ We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

¥ We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 33



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE

WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

The expected impact of the Policy is to support the intended actions of the
CB Hub to co-ordinate and support inclusion and consideration of CBs into
commissioning and procurement activity. The inclusion and consideration
of CBs, when applied to annual DCC spend, could bring significant
additional value for the area. The Policy validates the role of CB Hub in
building long term and meaningful engagement with internal and external
stakeholders, including but not limited to, Members, Officers, potential
suppliers, community groups, special interest groups (such as Ambition
Board and Public Service Board) and individuals. The Policy will guide the
DCC and the CB Hub to attract meaningful and real benefit to needs as
identified by CB Hubs liaison and engagement with these stakeholders.
The CB Hub's co-ordination of Section 106 agreements and the production
of case studies and reporting will contribute to a wider picture of benefits
brought through development and spend.

Review and report on outcomes and impact of CB Hub's implementation
of this Policy. Producing robust reporting that will be used to continue
engagement and collaborative review involving all affected stakeholders.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

DCC declared a climate emergency in 2018 and is committed to become
carbon neutral by 2030. Policy has potential to contribute to shaping of
Community Benefits menu that could include benefits designed to reduce
carbon based transport and ways of living. Such benefits could increase
options via practical interventions for reduction of carbon expenditure,
e.g. improved walking routes, improved house insulation, innovations in
non-carbon energy generation etc.

Policy would support officers to consider impacts of commissioning on
further development of connected communities. CB Hub's role in
coordinating between CBs and Section 106 projects could lead to an
increase in joined up thinking and approach thereby increasing potential
for additionality

Policy will provide approved framework for DCC to maximise social,
environmental, economic, cultural and health well-being delivered via
considering Community Benefits throughout the commissioning cycle. The
inclusion of CB criteria can enable alternative providers, such as third
sector organisations, e.g. community groups, voluntary or social
businesses, to compete in the tendering process. It is to be expected that
Policy will support capacity building within this sector that would
contribute towards sustainability of the sector.

Using experience from the North Wales Construction Framework (NWCF)
the CB Hub, supported by this Policy, has the potential to drive up-skilling
of the local workforce

Based on experience of NWCF Capacity building within third sector
organisations and other local SMEs or providers it is to

Page 34



Childcare

The CB Hub will be able to direct

officers to the relevant third sector organisations, educational
establishments that can help parents obtain skills, training and job
opportunities to re-enter work. It can also strengthen parents’
job stability and wages.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

Lack of buy-in from Services, business as usual, i.e. not considering
Community Benefits during commissioning and procurement stages.

Lack of buy-in from Services, business as usual, i.e. not considering
Community Benefits during commissioning and procurement stages.

Lack of buy-in from Services, business as usual, i.e. not considering
Community Benefits during commissioning and procurement stages.

Lack of buy-in from Services, business as usual, i.e. not considering
Community Benefits during commissioning and procurement stages.

Lack of buy-in from Services, business as usual, i.e. not considering
Community Benefits during commissioning and procurement stages.

Lack of buy-in from Services, business as usual, i.e. not considering
Community Benefits during commissioning and procurement stages.

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

Policy will encourage the consideration of Community Benefits at planning
and also at commissioning stages. The CB Hub will work with
stakeholders, both internal and external, to maximise the resilience of
Denbighshire and also potentially increase innovative actions as proposed
by winning tenders.

Any identified risks centre on lack of education and public and stakeholder
engagement. Mitigation would include co-operation with special groups
such as Countryside Services, Natural Resources Wales, AONB, and local
community nature groups, to provide information and engagement
opportunities.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

Advice and training on how to include identified biodiversity themed needs
on the menu of community benefits. Policy works in tandem with S106
agreements and DCC Countryside Services

Advice and training on how to include identified biodiversity themed needs
on the menu of community benefits. Policy works in tandem with S106
agreements and DCC Countryside Services

Policy will support measurement of increase in recycling and reduction of
waste as a positive Community Benefit outcome.

Considering CBs at initial planning or commissioning stage would increase
potential for actual reductions in energy/fuel consumption to be measured

and reported as aCtLBI CBs.
age 35



People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

Working with special interest groups, stakeholders and Countryside
Services and possibly Education Services to increase people's awareness
of how protecting existing environment and biodiversity and potentially
improving biodiversity and quality of environment could directly impact
well being and quality of life.

When CBs are aligned with Biodiversity and Environmental considerations
resulting flood risk management and mitigation can be reported and
monitored as benefit.

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

Lack on public engagement on value of biodiversity and natural
environment.

Resistance to any perceived increase in cost due to consideration of
biodiversity in the built environment. Also, potential for some lock of
sympathy for any biodiversity supporting mitigations.

Lack of public engagement and understanding

None identified

Lack of engagement

None identified

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact
Justification for

impact

Further actions
required

Positive

Adoption of CB Policy will have a generally positive impact by enabling the
CB Hub to better encourage, support and monitor effect and impact of CBs
in Denbighshire.

The identified risk of receiving negative feedback regarding resistance to
choosing healthy food over convenience food would be addressed by
working in partnership with community based education groups and also
school settings.

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

Policy will promote and support application and consideration of CBs early
on in planning and commissioning cycle. It is expected that CBs will
include increase in local employment; increase in existing, or training in
new, skills; improved sense of belonging, and well-being arising from
increased resilience self reliance; easier and safer access to outdoors
environment encouraging interaction and increased walking and cycling.

Through consideration of CBs at planning and commissioning stage access
to good quality, healthy food may be improved in a community benefit
focused on food provision and supply, e.g. support for community kitchen;
community shop; education and training on healthy food preparation and
cooking; and production of local food via allotment scheme.

Page 36



This policy, via consideration of CBs at planning and commissioning stage,

People’s emotional will encourage relevant CBs contributing to emotional and mental well-
and mental well- being, e.g. increased access to outside areas; support for community led
being groups from which participation can support sense of purpose and create

new friendships widening social circles among other benefits.

CB based support to community initiatives offering advocacy,
chaperoning, self-help groups, medicine pick-up and delivery, etc. CBs
could also improve access to education and information on how to access

Access to healthcare relevant healthcare and provide support via healthcare outreach. Policy
will support CB Hub to engage with Community Health Board and other
patient representative bodies and organisations to support identification of
benefits that would be valued within Denbighshire..

Aligned with CBs identified under Resilient Denbighshire improved access
to open spaces along with an increased interest in nature and biodiversity
and participation in locally led groups would potentially increase
opportunities for outdoors based leisure. Increased CB based support for
development of community based fitness groups could also improve
indoor and outdoor opportunities, e.g. community based bowls groups
offering social and fitness improvements.

Participation in
leisure opportunities

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical

environment that

encourage and None identified
support health and

well-being

Access to good

quality, healthy food Resistance to choosing healthy food over convenience foods.

People’s emotional
and mental well- None identified
being

Access to healthcare None identified

Participation in

. . Non identified
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

The impact is expected to be positive as Policy will support the
Justification for measurement, monitoring and reporting of impact of community benefits
impact on all groups of people. The Policy will support continual appraisal and

evaluation of the DCC CB Hub approach.

Currently no negative impacts are identified. However, continued
monitoring, appraisal and evaluation will recognise if any are developing
in future.

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:

Page 37



Improving the well-

being of people with

protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

Improved opportunities have the potential to improve well-being of all
people within Denbighshire including those with protracted characteristics.
The CB Hub will report on impact and benefit to those people with
protected characteristics

This Policy will support the CB approach to working closely with various
stakeholders to create and improve opportunities for various
disadvantaged groups.

Policy will support the CB Hub to encourage all services to consider,
implement and monitor community benefits and their impact upon
challenging wards.

Policy will support the CB Hub approach to encouraging consideration of
inclusion of CBs in planning and commissioning stages thus leading to
increases in real opportunities and targeted support that delivers
measurable benefit to those people and their communities.

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-

being of people with

protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive commlaﬁﬂlee

None identified

None identified

None identified

Non identified

38
3



Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

The Policy will support the CB Hub to work in partnership with DCC
services, communities and stakeholders to strengthen cohesiveness within
Denbighshire communities.

No negative impacts have been identified but Policy will support CB Hub to
monitor and report on an ongoing basis.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

Policy will support consideration and implementation of CBs throughout
DCC. Benefits contributing to safer surroundings an safeguarded locations
will form part of the menu of benefits DCC would value.

Policy will support continued engagement with Public Service Board,
Community and Town Councils. CBs are expected to offer practical and
measurable supports to communities to become more self reliant and
resilient. Outcomes and impacts will be monitored and assessed.

Policy will support the consideration of social value in new housing and
infrastructure developments.

Policy will support measurement and reporting on connectivity within the
County and any improvements stemming from CBs

policy will support co-ordiantion of application of gained CBs with other
benefits such as S106, Rural Development initiatives and rural support
organisations.

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

None identified

None identified

None identified

None identified

None identified

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

All CB Hub activity will be aligned to Welsh Language standards and DCC
Welsh Language Strategy. The CB Hub will engage and work with Officers,
Members, Community and Town Councils, Local community and special
interest groups to identify community benefits that would be valued in
promoting use of Welsh language. The CB Hub will also engage and work
with a wide variety of organisations to protect and promote cultural
heritage, e.g. AONB, County Libraries, historic locations and buildings,
etc.

olicy will support ¢ gagement with all relevant stakeholders.
Poli ill Ciﬁ 8d§g ith all rel kehold



Positive impacts identified:

All CB Hub activity will align with Welsh Language standards and DCC
Welsh language Policy. It may be expected that CB activities would
include Welsh language promotion or support for business or community
activity to be undertaken using Welsh language.

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh All CB Hub activity will align with Welsh Language standards and DCC
language Welsh Language Strategy.

The Policy supports co-operation with DCC officers to ensure culture and
Culture and heritage heritage are considered for potential community benefit where
appropriate.

Negative impacts identified:

Possibility that CBs increase economic activity that in turn creates

People using Welsh employment opportunities that will attract non-Welsh speakers.

Promoting the Welsh

None identified
language

Culture and heritage None identified

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

The impact of the community benefits, once secured, will be positive for

Justification for all public bodies that share similar well-being

impact objectives.
Further actions By continued monitoring and evaluation on the impact of Policy on
required community benefits.

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national, The Policy will support CB Hub to monitor supply DCC chains by both
international supply measuring and reporting on proportion of local, regional and national
chains spend according to nationally accepted baselines.

Through the procurement process all contractors are required to meet at
least minimum standards for H&S, employment rights, etc. this

Human rights requirement feeds down to their subcontractors and suppliers.

The CB Hub is supporting DCC Planning to record, monitor and report
against S106 agreements. This provision will generate a countywide
picture of S106 supported activities and create regular updates and points
of information for members and officers on the impact of S106
undertakings. The alignment of S106 with community benefits will also
increase potential for additionality.

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply None identified
chains

Page 40



Human rights None identified

Broader service
provision in the local None identified
area or the region

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 6

sir ddinbych
denbithhireg

County Council

Report to Cabinet

Date of meeting 15" December 2020

Lead Member / Officer  Julian Thompson Hill

Report author Steve Gadd, Head of Finance and Property

Title Finance Report (November 2020/21)

1. What is the report about?

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as agreed for
2020/21. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital Plan as well as the

Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan.
2. What is the reason for making this report?

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the council’s current financial position

and confirm the agreed service budgets for 2020/21.
3. What are the Recommendations?

3.1 Members note the budgets set for 2020/21 and progress against the agreed strategy.

3.2 Members approve the recommended use of the Schools Maintenance Grant which
has been awarded to the Council by the Welsh Government, as recommended by the
Strategic Investment Group and detailed in this report and Appendices 5, 6 and 7.

3.3 Members approve the recommended use of Welsh Government indicative grant
allocation awarded to the Council for damage to highways assets as recommended by the

Strategic Investment Group and detailed in this report and Appendixes 8, 9 and 10.

Page 43



3.4 Members approve the recommended use of the Childcare Capital Grant which has
been awarded to the Council by the Welsh Government, as recommended by the Strategic

Investment Group and detailed in this report and Appendices 11 and 12.
4, Report details

The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2020/21 detailed in
Appendix 1. The council’s net revenue budget is £208.302m (£198.538m in 19/20). The
position on service and corporate budgets is a forecast overspend of £2.476m (£5.492m
last month). This overspend now includes £2.7m paid in respect of the ‘income loss’ grant
for Quarter 2 (full claim amounted to £3.233m). Narrative around the current risks and
assumptions underlying this assessment are outlined in Section 6 and Appendix 2 which
also highlights the gross overspend.

The 2020/21 budget required service savings and efficiencies of £4.448m to be identified
and agreed as detailed below:

e Corporate savings identified relating to the triennial actuarial review of the Clwyd

Pension Fund (£2m)

e Schools savings of 1% (£0.692m)

e Service efficiencies and savings (£1.756m)
The corporate savings have already been achieved and the schools’ savings are
delegated to the governing bodies to monitor and deliver. On top of this £1.086m of the

service savings had originally been designated as savings that have already been

implemented.
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate
Priorities?

Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and delivery of the

agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including corporate priorities.
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

Significant service narratives explaining variances and risks are detailed in Appendix 2,

however the following should also be noted:

Page 44



Impact of Corona Virus - The current short term strategy of working with Welsh
Government has helped secure significant funding that has been detailed in previous
reports. A system of monthly expenditure claims and quarterly income loss claims has
been established. Due to the recent lockdown the £264m announced in August may not
be sufficient but we are working with WLGA and WG to ensure the position is monitored

closely.

The table below summarises the position of the expenditure claims for DCC. The ‘Holding’

column indicates items that WG are requesting further information on:

Original total| . FSM ) Net Claim

Month . Disallowed A Holding .

claim adjustment paid to date
March 2020 £61,701 £0 £0 £61,701
April 2020 £666,927 (£8,865)] £0 £658,062
May 2020 £1,200,170 (£21,076)]  (£190,316)] £988,778
June 2020 £1,027,489 (£29,226)]  (£158,614)] £839,649
July 2020 £608,569 ol (£248,013)] £360,556
August 2020 £449,370 £433,376 | £882,746
September 2020 £753,407 (£33,248)] (£112,436)]  £607,723
October 2020 £808,964 (£27,234)] (£236,403)|  £545,327
Submitted to date £5,576,597 | (£119,649)| (£163,567)] (£348,839)| £4,944,542
Grand Total £5,576,597 | (£119,649)| (£163,567)| (£348,839)| £4,944,542

The table below summarises the position relating to the quarterly income loss claims:

Original total
Quarter . ] Disallowed Holding Paid by WG
claim
Loss of income Qtr1| £4,007,786 (£567,923) (£122,240)1I (£3,317,623)
Loss of income Qtr2| £3,232,679 (£74,999) (£453,378)| (£2,704,302)
Grand Total £7,240,465 (£642,922) (£575,618)| (£6,021,925)

The tables above illustrate that so far Welsh Government have paid a total of £10.967m.

Leisure ADM - This budget line holds the residual budgets associated with Leisure
including the management fee that pays for the services that would be provided in a

normal year. Denbighshire Leisure Limited (DLL) is reporting monthly to the Contract

Page 45



Management Board on the rapidly changing financial position in this area. The Council is
claiming loss of income funding from Welsh Government on behalf of DLL.

Corporate Budgets —Although currently showing a nil variance it is likely that all
discretionary spend and contingencies will be released in order to help fund the position.
As reported last month £410k of contingency budget has been allocated to services to pay
for the recent pay settlement. However risks remain around the Council Tax Yield and the
Council Tax Reduction Scheme which is likely to wipe out the remaining contingency. Un-
earmarked General Balances of £7.135m were carried forward into 2020/21, with prudent
minimum level of £5m or 2% of Net Revenue Budget (£4.2m) whichever is the highest.

This may need to be reviewed as the impact of the pandemic continues to be felt.

Schools - The budget agreed by Council for 2020/21 included a total net additional
investment (excluding increases in Welsh Government grants) in schools delegated
budgets of just over £2.9m. The latest projection for school balances to be carried forward
into 2021/22 is a net deficit balance of £1.455m, which represents an increase of £0.067m
on the deficit balances brought forward into 2020/21 of £1.388m. The improved position
relates to the confirmation of the WG Grant to pay for the additional Teachers pay increase
that was over and above the WG assumptions in the settlement for 20/21. Additional
confirmation about what is claimable from WG for Covid related costs have also helped the

position.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The latest revenue position assumes a
decrease in balances at year end of £1,072k which is £859k more than the budgeted
decrease of £213k due to the revised plan to increase the revenue contribution to capital.
HRA balances are therefore forecast to be £1.600m at the end of the year. The Capital
budget of £19.2m is largely allocated between planned improvements to existing housings
stock (£5.3m) and new build developments and acquisitions (£13.8m). The pandemic has
had an impact on delivering a number of these schemes and it is expected that £3.3m will
be carried forward into next financial year in order to complete the programme of work next

financial year.

Treasury Management — At the end of November, the council’s borrowing totalled
£242.171m at an average rate of 3.89%. Investment balances were £14.2m at an average
rate of 0.002%.

Page 46



A summary of the council’s Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 3. The approved capital
plan is £48.54m with expenditure to date of £20.59m. Appendix 4 provides an update on
the major projects included in the overall Capital Plan. The Strategic Investment Group
recently reviewed the following business cases which are recommended for approval by
Cabinet.

School Maintenance Grant: The grant totals £1.487m and aims to address backlog
capital maintenance in schools. Officers from the Education Service and Property Service
have agreed a list of priorities. It is proposed no funding is allocated to schools within the
21st Century Band A programme or schools likely to benefit under Band B. The Business
Case is included as Appendix 5, the detailed list as Appendix 6 and the Wellbeing Impact

Assessment presented to the Strategic Investment Group as Appendix 7.

Recovery from February Floods: Following the storms during February and March 2020,
the Welsh Government informed local authorities that they would make funding available
for damage caused as a result of the weather and invited the Council to submit a list of
schemes with estimates. The Council subsequently received an indicative allocation of
£1.311m. Whilst the arrival of Covid 19 hampered the full assessment of works needed
and grant application process, the Council has been able to commence some remedial
works using its own capital funding. The Welsh Government have requested an update on
progress and it is hoped a formal grant award will follow. The Business Case is included
as Appendix 8, the detailed list as Appendix 9 and the Wellbeing Impact Assessment

presented to the Strategic Investment Group as Appendix 10.

Childcare Capital Grant: The Welsh Government has committed to providing 30 hours of
government funded early education and childcare to all three and four year olds of eligible
working parents, and has made capital funding available. There are three projects
currently proposed:
e To relocate 2 Cylch groups from unsuitable buildings and amalgamate into one
provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant, Rhyl — latest estimate £1.177m
e To relocate Cylch Bodawen from current site to Ysgol Twm o’r Nant, Denbigh -
latest estimate £878k
e Expansion of ‘Little Acorns’ at the Oaktree Integrated Children’s Centre, Rhyl —
latest estimate £1.287m
The original business case submitted to Welsh Government did not allow for detailed

feasibility works to be undertaken due to the tight timescales imposed by Welsh

Page 47



Government. Subsequent work has identified estimated costs to have increased by
£1.012m for the three schemes above with reasons highlighted in the business case
(Appendix 11). The original business case to Welsh Government included new childcare
provision at Ysgol Bryn Collen, Llangollen with a cost estimate of £407k. However,
following a review of childcare supply within the South of the County, there has shown to
be more than sufficient out of school provision available and it is therefore proposed to
pause this proposal. In addition, the construction of the Welsh Language Centre at Ysgol
Glan Clwyd site, St Asaph was completed with a saving of £713k on the Welsh Medium
Development Grant awarded by the Welsh Government.

A request was made by the Council to Welsh Government for agreement to utilise the
grant originally earmarked for Ysgol Bryn Collen and the underspend of grant on the
Welsh Language Centre to meet the forecast overspend of £1.012m on the three
Childcare projects within this proposal. Welsh Government have now formally agreed the
virement request and this allows for the construction of Childcare projects in Denbigh and
Rhyl as above to be constructed and funded with 100% Welsh Government Grant
Funding. The Business Case is included as Appendix 11 and the Wellbeing Impact

Assessment presented to the Strategic Investment Group as Appendix 12.

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact

Assessment?

A Well-being Impact Assessments for the Council Tax rise was presented to Council on 21

January.

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny

and others?

In addition to regular reports to the Corporate Governance Committee, the budget process
has been considered by CET, SLT, Cabinet Briefing and Council Briefing meetings. The
School Budget Forum have been included in the proposals through-out the year. Trade
Unions have been consulted through Local Joint Consultative Committee. This year also
saw an engagement exercise with the public using social media, the experience of which

will be built on in future years.

Page 48



9. Chief Finance Officer Statement

Obviously the core focus at the moment is the financial response and recovery in recovery
in relation to the Covid 19 pandemic. The regular Finance Cabinet Report will continue to
keep members up to date and regular updates will continue to be provided to informal
Cabinet.

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to

reduce them?

This is obviously the most challenging financial period DCC has faced. The Financial
Strategy agreed by Cabinet in May aims to mitigate the following key risks:

» Failure to have a robust funding strategy could impact on the financial stability and

sustainability of the Council.
« Impact on ability for the Council to deliver core services.

* Impact on capacity of the Council to achieve its priorities.
11. Power to make the decision

Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to

make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs.

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



TG obed

Appendix 1

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET 2020/21

Net Budget Budget 2020/21 Projected Outturn Variance
Nov-20 2019/20 |Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous
Report
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
Communities and Customers 3,339 3,944 -620 3,324 4,022 -701 3,321 78 -81 -3 -0.09% 0
Education and Children's Service 16,027 18,267 -1,141 17,126 20,043 -2,217 17,826 1,776 -1,076 700 4.09% 685
Business Improvement and Modernisation 4,501 5,188 -879 4,309 5,337 -1,095 4,242 149 -216 -67 -1.55% -72
Legal, HR and Democratic Services 2,597 3,038 -654 2,384 2,993 -688 2,305 -45 -34 -79 -3.31% -50
Finance and Property 4,836 6,071 -1,405 4,666 6,178 -1,512 4,666 107 -107 0 0.00% 0
Highways, Facilities and Environmental Services 15,768 25,028 -7,967 17,061 26,008 -7,908 18,100 980 59 1,039 6.09% 1,762
Planning and Public Protection 9,246 10,272 -498 9,774 10,546 -769 9,777 274 -271 3 0.03% 256
Community Support Services 35,775 38,188 -69 38,119 39,190 -409 38,781 1,002 -340 662 1.74% 714
Leisure - ADM 2,109 3,272 0 3,272 3,493 0 3,493 221 0 221 6.75% 2,197
Total Services 94,198 113,268 -13,233 100,035 117,810 -15,299 102,511 4,542 -2,066 2,476 2.48% 5,492
Corporate 16,888 45,541 -29,233 16,308 45,541 -29,233 16,308 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Precepts & Levies 4,806 4,899 0 4,899 4,899 0 4,899 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Capital Financing 13,652 13,724 0 13,724 13,724 0 13,724 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Total Corporate 35,346 64,164 -29,233 34,931 64,164 -29,233 34,931 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Council Services & Corporate Budget 129,544 177,432 -42,466 134,966 181,974 -44,532 137,442 4,542 -2,066 2,476 1.83% 5,492
Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 68,994 76,480 -3,144 73,336 76,130 -2,727 73,403 -350 417 67 0.09% 530
Total Council Budget 198,538 253,912 -45,610 208,302 258,104 -47,259 210,845 4,192 -1,649 2,543 1.22% 6,022
Housing Revenue Account 157 16,833 -16,620 213 17,439 -16,367 1,072 606 253 859 853




This page is intentionally left blank



€g abed

Appendix 2 - Service Variance Narrative

Variance | Variance
Service Last This Change Description
Month | Month | £000 :
£000 £000
Communities and Customers 0 -3 -3|Income loss grant received.
This is despite new monies of £1.5M being allocated to Children's Services this financial year. The movement from last
Education and Children's Service 685 700 15 month largely relates to a reductiOon in Out of Cc?unty income and an increase in residlential recharges. No costs have
been included for any new placements commencing throughout the year that we don't currently know about. The
budget will obviously be monitored carefully over the coming months.
Business Improvement and 7 67 Underspend due to a vacancy saving and one-off external income for a specific project. Some of this underspend will be
Modernisation placed in the new reserve set up to help fund future improvements to Ruthin Gaol.
Underspends due to vacancy savings following delay due to Covid 19 - minor changes across a range of areas accounts
Legal, HR and Democratic Services -50 -79 -29 P ¥ & g v J g
for the movement from last month.
The overspend previously reported earlier in the year related to a shortfall in income due to the decision to forego rents
. for indutrial units for April to July in response to the Covid pandemic alongside a reduction in income generally on the
Finance and Property 0 0 . . . . -
coastal portfolio. Most of this loss of income has now been approved and paid as part of Q1 Tranche 2. The remaining
costs are offset by vacancy savings (Chief Accountant post) due to the lockdown and an overall cost reduction excercise.
£1.25m of the opverspend relates to the loss of income from schools meals - this projection assumes no income for term
Highways, Facilities and Environmental 1762 1039 723 3 and a reduced level for the beginning of term 1. A further £337k relates to Waste due to reduced income in quarter
Services ! ! (green waste, trade waste etc). The main reason for the decrease relates to the receipt of Q2 income loss grant (laregly
for School catering) and revised costings and timings relating to the Legacy Tips issue.
The service has received £253k Income Loss grant relating to redcused footfall in car parks. School Transport is currently
Planning and Public Protection 256 3 -253|projected to overspend by £309k, however it is assumed that the net overspend of £309k will be claimable from WG
Covid Grant. If this is not the case then the overspend in PPP will increase by this amount.
The project is due to additional costs over and above the £2.6m estaimated and included in the budget for 2020/21. The
main areas of concern are homlessness and Communit Care packages. The projection assumes that the service will again
Community Support Services 714 662 -52|receive the £800k Workforce & Sustainability Grant. No assumption has been made about grant funidng for winter
pressures which tend to be announced by WG in the autumn and during the winter itself. The movement from last
month relates to the receipt of the Q2 Covid Income Grant.
Leisure - ADM 2,197 221 -1,976|Movement relates to application of Q2 Covid Income Claim.
Corporate & Miscellaneous 0 0 0[See body of report for details
Precepts & Levies 0 0 0[There are no risks in this area
The position on capital financing is very much related to progress on capital projects and variances do not crystallise
Capital Financing 0 0 .p . ) P . B 4 Prog priatprol y
until later in the financial year.
Council Services & Corporate Budget 5,492 2,476] -3,016




This page is intentionally left blank



Denbighshire County Council - Capital Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24

Position to end November 2020

Capital Expenditure

GG abed

Capital Financing
External Funding
Receipts and Reserves
Prudential Borrowing
Unallocated Funding

Note: 2020-21 Original Estimate is the position as approved by Council on 25th February 2020

Total Estimated Payments - Other

Total Estimated Payments - Major Projects:

Housing Improvement Grants

Rhyl, New 3-16 Catholic School
Ysgol Llanfair, New School

Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, New School
Highways Maintenance

East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme
Rhyl Waterfront and Waterpark
Waste Service Remodelling

Contingency
Total

Total Capital Financing

APPENDIX 3
2020/21 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
ORIGINAL LATEST LATEST LATEST LATEST
ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
13,293 26,460 3,409 350 350
1,200 1,200
1,010 939 366
399 148
822 119 750
3,253 5,294
11,660 12,803 9,150 5,575
36 73
9,475 1,000 13,172
500 500 500 500 500
41,648 48,536 27,347 6,425 850
18,163 23,704 12,365 4,809 4,809
3,874 8,617 2,063
19,611 16,215 17,228 5,925 350
0 0 (4,309) (4,309) (4,309)
41,648 48,536 27,347 6,425 850




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 - Major Capital Projects Update — November 2020

21st Century Schools Programme - Ysgol Llanfair

Total Budget £4.964m

Expenditure to date £4.872m

Estimated remaining spend in 20/21 | £0.092m

Future Years estimated spend £0.000m

Funding WG £0.180m; DCC £4.784m
Narrative:

This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. The
project has provided a new school building on a new site in Llanfair DC.

The school are fully settled into their new environment and are reaping the benefits of the

new facilities.

The swap in land whereby the Church in Wales St. Asaph Diocese will receive the footprint of
the land at the new school site and the Council will receive ownership of the land in Diocese
ownership at the former school site is currently progressing. Negotiations are ongoing
between both parties and it is hoped that a completion can be reached shortly. Once the
former site is in the Council’s possession, it will be declared surplus by Education and
discussions on the future use for the former school site will commence.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 20/21

£0.148m

Page 57




215t Century Schools Programme — Glasdir

Total Budget £11.714m

Expenditure to date £11.566m

Estimated remaining spend in 20/21 £0.000m

Future Years estimated spend £0.148m
Funding DCC £3.066m; WG £8.648m
Narrative

This project has delivered a new shared school building site for Rhos Street School and
Ysgol Penbarras at Glasdir, Ruthin which has been used by the schools since April 2018.

The final account has now been settled.

The tender for additional hard standing has been published and will be evaluated in January
2021. The work on site is scheduled to take 8 weeks and is planned to take place in the
spring of 2021. The costs of the works, approximately £200k, will be absorbed from the
overall allocation to the Ruthin projects in 2016 as part of Denbighshire’s contribution to the
21st Century Schools Programme.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 20/21 £0.052m

Page 58




215t Century Schools Programme — Rhyl, Christ the Word School

Total Budget £23.440m

Expenditure to date £22.933m

Estimated remaining spend in 20/21 | £ 0.141m

Future Years estimated spend £ 0.366m
Funding WG £5.541m; DCC £17.899m
Narrative:

This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme.

Snagging works continue to be completed and the works are being closely monitored.
Corporate ICT are now in the process of installing the remaining items of ICT kit the
school need- this will hopefully be completed by January 2021.

The budget continues to be closely monitored as the project comes to an end.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 20/21 £0.939m

Page 59




Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment

Total Budget £6.463m

Expenditure to date £4.633m

Estimated remaining spend in 20/21 | £1.467m

Future Years estimated spend £0.363m

Funding WG £2.811m (Additional £2.5m subject to formal
confirmation. DCC Asbestos £0.252m. DCC
£3.400m

Narrative:

All existing tenants from the Market Hall have now vacated either to alternative premises
or ceased trading, and it is not accessible by the public. All buildings are now clear.
Asbestos has been removed from the Savoy and Queen’s Hotel, but a substantial amount
of sprayed asbestos has been identified above the Arcade. This will be very time
consuming and costly to remove and will be included in the demolition contract.

The demolition contractor will be appointed this week (w/c 30/11/20) and will start on site
following Christmas. The Planning Application will be submitted w/c December 7.

Additional funds were secured from the Council at the September Cabinet meeting but
further funds are still required. The funding required is being considered at the December
WG Capital Panel.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 20/21 £2.209m

Page 60




Waste Service Remodelling

Total Budget £16.430m

Expenditure to date £2.779m

Estimated remaining spend in 20/21 | £0.479m

Future Years estimated spend £13.172m
Funding WG £9.345m , DCC £7.085m
Narrative:

Work is ongoing in preparation for a change to the household waste collection model. The
new service model will see a move to weekly collection of kerbside sorted recyclable
material with a 4 weekly collection of residual/non-recyclable waste. Weekly food waste
collection will continue as at present and additional services around collection of
absorbent hygiene products (AHP), textiles, small electricals and batteries will also be
available and will be introduced in the run up to or during the main roll out of the new
kerbside sort service.

A number of work streams are being taken forward to include:

o Development of a new single central waste transfer station depot on land adjacent
to the Colomendy Industrial Estate in Denbigh. Work is ongoing on detailed design
with aim to issue a Tender for the initial Phase 1 / Enabling Works by the end of
2020/early 2021 with a site start in late spring 2021.

¢ Specification of the new fleet required to support the new model is now completed
following a number of trials/tests with the aim to undertake a procurement exercise
for the new waste collection vehicles at the appropriate time in 2021 with delivery
of the new fleet anticipated in the three months leading up to the planned new
service roll out.

An Options Appraisal exercise on the detail of the new recycling container design has
commenced, the outcome of which will be taken forward for formal approval of a preferred
option, followed by a subsequent tender and delivery schedule in time for roll out
associated with proposed service change. A number of mobilisation and communication
activities are ongoing to prepare for the service change and include developing the new
collection routes; planning for any staffing changes/requirements and ongoing
engagement and communication with stakeholders and residents.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 20/21 £1.000m

Page 61




East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme

Total Budget £27.528m

Expenditure to date £9.239m

Estimated remaining spend in 20/21 £3.564m

Future Years estimated spend £14.725m
Funding WG £23.400m; DCC £4.128m
Narrative:

The ongoing coastal defence scheme at East Rhyl will provide an improved standard of flood
protection for around 1650 properties.

Work on site continues to progress well and is on time and within budget. Rock armour
continues to be delivered to site and more than one quarter of the rock revetment work is
complete. The first of 3 new beach accesses is substantially complete. Production of the pre-
cast concrete sea wall units has commenced in Norfolk.

Work to make improvements to the Rhyl Golf Course flood storage area is 50% complete
with no issues.

The site will close down for 2 weeks over the Christmas period, with work recommencing on
4" January.

Forecast In Year Expenditure 20/21 £12.803m

Page 62




STRATEGIC INVESTMENT GROUP

Cyngor

sir ddinbych v}
| A 4

County Council

BUSINESS CASE — CAPITAL INVESTMENT

This Business Case provides justification for undertaking a project. The completed form will be reviewed
by the Strategic Investment Group who will make a recommendation to Council whether the bid should
be approved and included within the Capital Plan. All sections should be completed and evidence of
costs will need to be supplied.

For details of Strategic Investment Group meetings and deadlines for the submission of this form, please

contact Richard Humphreys, Capital & Technical Finance Team on ext 6144.

Project Name:

Schools Maintenance Grant — Welsh Government

Project Reference:

Project Manager:

Andrew Ward / James Curran

Workstream:

Property / Education Support

Head of Service/Project
Sponsor

Geraint Davies

Lead member:

ClIr Julian Thompson-Hill /
ClIr Huw Hilditch-Roberts

Service: Education and LM Portfolio: Facilities, Assets & Housing
Children’s / Education
Services

Form completed by: Lisa Walchester | Date: November 2020

Service Accountant: Date:

PROJECT TYPE

Please categorise your project type. Mark one box only.

| SMALL | X |

| MEDIUM | ]

| LARGE |

DECISION SOUGHT FROM SIG:

Approval of outline spending for the Capital Grant received
from the Welsh Government.

l1|Page

Page 63




Cyngor

sir ddlnbych L
COUmy Council v

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Highlights the key points in the Business Case to include:-

e what the project will achieve / important benefits
e estimated costs
¢ how the project will be funded

The Council were notified in January 2020 that they had been awarded an additional £1.487m by the Welsh
Government (WG) for School Maintenance works. This money was to be spent by the 315t March 2020 and as
per guidance existing works already committed during 2019/2020 were to be allocated against these works.

In 2019 the Council received £1.388m from this same fund from WG. To date £612,729 of this funding has
been spent with the rest committed to maintenance projects in various schools- please see Appendix A for
details on this.

As with the grant in 2019, the additional £1.487m is funding to assist with the improvement of the school estate
and in particular to address issues where additional support is required for the enhancement of facilities. All
schools were requested to identify priority areas for support and these are reflected in the proposals. In
addition this funding will be used to address the existing maintenance backlog and will complement the funding
allocated in the block allocations.

A draft priority list is attached as follows- Appendix B. This will be developed further over the coming months-
all costs are currently estimates.

BUSINESS OPTIONS

Analysis and reasoned recommendation for the base business options of: do nothing / do the minimal
or do something

Option title: | Do nothing — maintain the existing situation

Please provide brief details:

The authority could reject the grant offer. This would reduce the capital available for investment in the County’s
School estate and would not address any issues regarding the backlog of maintenance in schools.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver X
Costs the same Takes the same to
deliver
Costs less X Is quicker to deliver
Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality No impact on benefits
Is a lower quality X Waorsens benefits X
2|Page

Page 64



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
COUmy Council v

What is the main reason this option has not been selected?

This option would have no benefits to the local authority.

Option title: | Include within general Schools Maintenance Budget

Please provide brief details:

The option remains to subsume the allocation within the general allocation for schools maintenance. This
option could see other funding displaced and no overall impact made on the condition of school buildings. This
would also go against the wishes of the Welsh Government who have requested that this funding is used as
additionality to general capital works to the school estate.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver X
Costs the same Takes the same to
deliver
Costs less X Is quicker to deliver
Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality No impact on benefits
Is a lower quality X Waorsens benefits X

What is the main reason this option has not been selected?

This option would not meet the spirit of the grant from the Welsh Government and would not make any
additional impact on addressing the backlog of maintenance in the school estate.

EXPECTED BENEFITS

The benefits that the project will deliver expressed in measurable terms against the situation as it exists
prior to the project

The use of the £1.487m in the intended form would assist in making improvements to the school estate by
addressing existing areas of the maintenance backlog. The Council’'s approach to the management of the
school estate via major works via the 21st Century Schools Programme and through the Maintenance
Programme is ensuring investment is targeted in areas of greatest need.

The use of the funding to address other areas of concern in the school estate will also benefit teaching and
learning. At present there is no general allocation for refurbishment of areas such as science labs in High
Schools and as a consequence the gap between new schools such as Rhyl High and Ysgol Glan Clwyd and
schools such as Prestatyn High and Ysgol Brynhyfryd is growing. The use of this funding to address specialist
areas not routinely addressed via maintenance works would have a positive impact on teaching and learning.

3|Page

Page 65




Cyngor

sir ddlnbych "?

Counfy Council

EXPECTED DIS-BENEFITS

Outcomes perceived as negative by one or more stakeholders

TIMESCALE
Over which the project will run (summary of the Project Plan) and the period over which the
benefits will be realised

Date Milestone
1 Jan 2021 Commencement of Programme
31 March 2022 Aimed Completion of Programme

CAPITAL COSTS - BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed.
Note that even some Business Development Projects may have a requirement for capital costs, for
example to fund the acquisition of new ICT hardware or undertaking alterations to buildings.

e Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT
department

e Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or
Building Services

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project:

Enter details of cost element below: Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)
Client side project management

4|Page

Page 66



Cyngor

5|r ddlnbych
= County CauRel v

OTHER (please enter)
OTHER (please enter)
TOTAL

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below: 2020/21 2021/22 Future All Years
Years Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)
Client side project management

ICT infrastructure and hardware

Building alterations

Desigh Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)
Furniture

Other professional support (legal, etc)
Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (gateway review,
etc)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources

Enter details of funding source Status: 2020/21 2021/22 Future TOTAL
Years

TOTAL

NOTE: For funding status, please only use the following categories:

e Approved —written approval for the funding exists
e Applied — no written approval exists but an application has been made
e Approached — initial approach to or by funding body has been made but no application submitted
e None - no contact or approach has been made to or by the funding body
5|Page

Page 67



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych "?

Counfy Council

CAPITAL COSTS — CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed.

e Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT
department.

e Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or
Building Services.

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project:

Enter details of cost element below: Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)
Client side project management

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below: 2020/21 2021/22 Future All Years
Years Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)
Client side project management
Land/property acquisition

Land preparation/remediation

Demolition and/or site security
Construction, refurbishment or maintenance 600,000 600,000 287,000 1,487,000
BREEAM rating of “Excellent”

Security measures (CCTV, door entry, etc)
Fire prevention measures (sprinklers, etc)
External landscaping and other works
Land/property acquisition

Highways work

ICT infrastructure and hardware

Fixtures & fittings

Furniture

Planning/Building Regulation Costs

Desigh Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)

Legal Costs and Fees
Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (eg gateway review)
OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL 600,000 600,000 287,000 1,487,000

6|Page

Page 68



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
¥ colrity Caanci v

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources

Enter details of funding source Status: 2020/21 2021/22 Future TOTAL
Years
Welsh Government School Awarded 600,000 600,000 287,000 1,487,000

Maintenance Grant

TOTAL 600,000 600,000 287,000 1,487,000

REVENUE COST IMPACT
TO BE COMPLETED FOR ALL PROJECTS

In considering whether a project should be developed due regard should be made to the potential impact
on revenue budgets.

If the activity will result in a requirement for additional revenue funding, please provide details
below:

What is the impact of this project in terms of the annual Existing Post- Increase/
revenue requirement for: Revenue project Decrease
Budget Revenue
Budget

staff costs (salaries and associated)

energy costs (heating, lighting, ICT, etc)

property maintenance and servicing costs

other property related costs (rental, insurance, etc)

ongoing ICT costs (licences, etc)

mileage of Denbighshire fleet vehicles

mileage for business travel by Denbighshire employees
using their personal vehicles
OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OVERALL REVENUE REQUIREMENT

Please provide brief details of the revenue impact of this project:

o Where revenue savings are forecast, you should detail what is proposed for the saving (e.g.
reduction of an existing revenue budget, re-allocation of revenue to alternative services area,
etc)

o Where revenue increases are forecast, you should provide details of how the revenue shortfall
will be addressed. In this instance you should also append a three year surplus/deficit forecast.

7|Page

Page 69



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
¥ colrity Caanci v

o Details of any one-off revenue cost requirements that may be required post-project
implementation (e.g. recruitment, redundancies, etc). DO NOT include any costs detailed in the
capital section of this Business Case

There are no identified revenue costs at this stage. By staggering the work across financial years this will
reduce the pressure on the maintenance team and eliminate the requirement for additional staff to be
employed to manage the additional spend.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Please provide details of proposed project management — Establishment of Project Board etc

The project will be managed through the Building Maintenance team. The programme of works will consist
of numerous projects, with the vast majority being categorised as small / minor works. Each project will be
procured in accordance with the current CPR’s, procurement strategy and industry best practice.

A Surveyor / Technician from the Design, Construction and Maintenance team will be allocated as project
officer, who will be responsible for the delivery of each project on time, within budget and to the required
specification.

Regular meetings will be held with Education Managers to monitor the spend and amend the programme
to ensure the contingency element is fully spent.

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS / HEALTH & SAFETY

This section should identify how the activity will help Denbighshire meet any of its statutory
requirements. Please include any Health & Safety Issues that the activity will address in this section.
Please leave blank if not applicable.

The project will help meet the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, Management of Health and Safety
at Work Regulations 1999, Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992, Provision and Use
of Work Equipment Regulations 1998, Occupiers Liability Act 1957 and 1984, Equalities Act 2010, DDA
1995, HSE Approved Codes of Practice, British Standards including BS 4163:2007, Health and Safety
Guidance Note GS23 (Electrical Safety in Schools), Control of Asbestos Regulations 2006.

Meet the requirements of the Education Building Bulletins, Education (School Premises Regulations)
1999, Department for Education Regulations and Design Notes, etc.

The project will help meet the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

8|Page

Page 70



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych "?

Counfy Council

CARBON MANAGEMENT IMPACT
Please consult with Denbighshire’s Principal Energy Manager before completing this section.

Denbighshire has committed to reducing its carbon emissions by 15% by 2020. The Business Case
requires you to make a forecast for the anticipated carbon emissions impact of the project. Please mark
a cross in the appropriate box.

Forecasts: Annual Carbon Annual Carbon Carbon
(current) Equivalent | (Post Equivalent | Variance
Project)

Energy consumption:
(UNIT = kWh)

Mileage of Denbighshire Fleet vehicles:
(UNIT = miles travelled)

Tonnes of waste produced going to landfill:
(UNIT =tonnes)

Tonnes of waste produced being recycled:
(UNIT =tonnes)

Mileage of Business Travel (personal
vehicles):
(UNIT = miles travelled)

TOTAL CARBON EMISSIONS

Please provide brief details of the carbon impact of this project, and detail specific actions that will be
taken to reduce carbon emissions. If carbon emissions are expected to increase as a result of this
project, please provide details of proposed actions to compensate for this increase in other areas of the
Service’s activity.

9|Page

Page 71



Cyngor

sir ddinbych v}

County Council

BIODIVERSITY IMPACT
Please consult with Denbighshire’s Biodiversity Officer before completing this section:
joel.walley@denbighshire.gov.uk

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure compliance and enforcement of the habitats regulations (as
amended in 2007) and the NERC Biodiversity Duty (2006). At this pre-feasibility stage, what is the
anticipated impact on biodiversity of the project. Please mark a cross in the appropriate box.

Will this project impact on a habitat that supports living organisms Yes No X
(plant or animal)?

If you have answered yes to the above question, please complete all the following biodiversity sections.
If answered no please leave blank

THREATENED/PROTECTED SPECIES Yes No X
Will this project impact on any protected or threatened species as
defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP)?

ALL SPECIES (including threatened/protected) Current Post- Variance
Forecasts: number project (+/-)
number

Number of plant species present:

Number of animal species present:

TOTAL NUMBER OF SPECIES PRESENT

Please provide brief details of the action you will be taking in association with this project to protect or
enhance biodiversity. Specific reference should be made to the mitigation strategy if the project impacts
on any protected or threatened species as defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan
(LBAP).

It is anticipated that the projects will have little impact on biodiversity. However, there is a possibility that
bats and/or nesting birds such as swallows and house martins may be affected by some of the works.
As these species are legally protected, measures will be taken to minimise any disturbance and mitigate
if necessary, by following best practice and guidance, if any are found whilst project works are being
carried out which could disturb them.

Where there is the potential for this to occur then any bat and bird surveys will be undertaken if
necessary and consultation will take place with the County Ecologist or the County Biodiversity Officer
about specifics.

10|Page

Page 72



Cyngor

5|r ddlnbych
= County CauRel v

MAJOR RISKS TO THE PROJECT
A summary of the key risks associated with the project together with the likely impact and plans should
they occur (Please also add to your project risk register)

Key Risk Likely Impact Mitigating Action

Loss of service delivery. Dynamic re-prioritisation of works;
Unforeseen essential Potential Closure of buildings/part closure;
maintenance prosecution/fines/reputational | Relocation of essential service provision
requirements damage

Failure to deliver Employ agency/temporary contract staff to
Lack of resources to maintenance programme and | deliver projects
deliver maintenance spend allocation
programme

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Please list any supporting documents that accompany this Business Case

Appendix A- Works undertaken
Appendix B- List of works
Letter from Welsh Government

ANNUAL CAPITAL BIDS — BLOCK ALLOCATIONS

Please provide details of expenditure and commitments for allocations received in the current financial year.

1l1|Page

Page 73



Cyngor

byer

C(Sunfy Co"uncil

9
&

nmn o

COUNTY LANDLORD STATEMENT
Please provide a statement from the County Landlord and where applicable the recommendation of the
Asset Management Group

The proposals are supported. The additional funding supplements the Council’s
capital allocations and allows enhancement work over & above the essential H&S
works currently being addressed through the block allocations. Alignment of projects
from both allocations maximises the benefit of both funding streams.

Supplied by: David Lorey Date: 13/11/2020

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER STATEMENT

It is welcome that the additional funding will be used on schemes that are aligned and
compliment the essential H&S works currently being addressed through the block
allocations. The proposals are supported and will ensure that grant funding is
maximised and used to fund priority areas that had already been identified.

Supplied by: Steve Gadd Date:20 Nov 20
VERIFICATION:

Project
Manager:
Project
Sponsor:

Name: Position:

Signature: Date:

For use by Finance:

Result of S.I.G. Review

12|Page

Page 74



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
denbighzhire'g

County Council

Date of Meeting

Approval

Code

13|Page

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B:

Building Maintenance Additional Works - estimated costs Es'gcr:‘;te Actual Cost | Priority 1 -E

High Schools

Prestatyn High School - Additional Corridor Across the Quad £25-£30K 2

Prestatyn High School - Science Lab Refurbishments Phase llI £165,000 1

Prestatyn High School - Science Lab Refurbishments Phase IV £165,000 1

Prestatyn High School - Lift to first floor £80K 2

Prestatyn High School - Canopies around the school to use during poor weather

Prestatyn High School - Classroom Refurbishments to Blocks 1,2 and 3 £300K £300,000 1

Prestatyn High School - Window Replacements Blocks 1,2 and 3 £300K 2

Prestatyn High School - Covered Walkway Roof Replacement £150K 2

Prestatyn High School - Additional Parking Space £125K 2

Prestatyn High School - Replacement Alarm System

Prestatyn High School - Refurbishment of Mobile Classrooms ;:

-

Qsgol Brynhyfryd - Phase Il Science Lab Refurbishment £330,000 1
gol Brynhyfryd - Replacement Floor Screeds to 'N' block £50K

~

?égol Dinas Bran- toilet improvements £100K

Primary Schools

Betws GG School - Provision of a dedicated, secure office and reception area near the main door. ?

Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog - Conversion of mobile room into a meeting room ?

Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog- Demolition of sheds and installation of a container £25K 2

Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog - Conversion of outdoor Gazebo structure into a more usable space £70K

Ysgol Y Parc - Year 1 Classrooms "walk through open areas" to be closed -

alternative access to Year 2 rooms required. This is impacting on Teaching & Learning £30,000 1

Ysgol Y Parc - Year 1 Classrooms Provision of a canopy to use as an outside Classroom £30K £30,000 1




Ysgol Frongoch - 3 x External Doors require fob access for security purposes £10K

Ysgol Pendref - Hall surface in KS2 building which was rendered unusable by the Company
that DCC send out to inspect. £5K

Ysgol Pendref - Waterlogged outdoor play area - recently logged with the Helpdesk £30K

Hiraddug - Main Hall Flooring (0/023) £10K

Hiraddug - Foundation Phase outdoor area/Astro Turf (outside 0/011 to 0/010) £10K
Hiraddug - Tarmac of rear field pathways £10K

Gellifor - Refurbish Pupil Toilets. Est £35K

Bro Elwern CP School - New Reception Area £30K

Llanarmon Yn lal, Ysgol Bro Famau — Replacement Flooring to Kitchen/Dining Room. £5K
2e)

Q)
f]_:]anbedr DC - Refurbish Pupil Toilets + extra toilets. Est £35K

D

P |
N

OQgol Dyffryn lal - creation of an outdoor teaching area in the old school yard

Ysgol Bryn Clwyd - Replacement Flooring £8K

Llanferres, Ysgol Bro Famau — Replacement of rotten wooden fence in Foundation Phase £1K

Llanferres, Ysgol Bro Famau — External painting. £4K

Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch - Replacement Atrium & Convert area to indoor use £225K

Ysgol Melyd - Flooring

£15,000

Ysgol Melyd -Safety Fencing between Footpath and staff Carpark £3K

Pentrecelyn CP School - Toilet Refurbishments, main school & house. £40K




Pentrecelyn CP School - Upgrade of electrics following fire safety tour. £15K

Pentrecelyn CP School - Upgrade Fire Doors. £35K

Pentrecelyn CP School - External Decorations. £5K

Pentrecelyn CP School - Upgrade Security Alarm.

Bodnant - Carpets to KS2 £10K

Bodnant - Re-instate Dooor to Kitchen £2K

Bodnant - Widening of on site footpath at early years entrance. £8K
Pathway is not wide enough for 2 way foot traffic, especially prams.

Penmorfa - Flooring £15K

Penmorfa - Internal Decoration, inc Pre Paint Repairs £15K

Clawwd Offa - Rendering to External £15K

Clawwd Offa - Tarmac paths from log cabin to connect to poly tunnel £10K

Clawwd Offa - New Poly Tunnel £10K

5’mmanue| - Fencing to Front of School

Q
for)

;Eprthyn Controlled School - Replacement Flooring £8K

%rthyn Controlled School - Sand & Seal Hall Floor. £5K

Borthyn Controlled School - Replacement Sink Unit to Staffroom £500

St Asaph VP Infants - secure holding area at reception £25k

St Asaph VP Infants - Fencing to the front of the school is too low £5k

Ysgol Esgob Morgan - Front Gates too low £4k

Ysgol Esgob Morgan - Safeguarding issue in welcome area - improvements required

Ysgol Trefnant - Ongoing issues with fire exit door that needs repairing £1K

Special Schools




Gerddi Glasfryn - Perspex screens required to separate kitchen from dining area.

This is for H&S reasons to prevent a pupil climbing over the counter. £5,000 1
Ty'r Ysgol - New kitchen units to replace existing damaged/rotten units. £1,500
Ty'r Ysgol - Refit shower room to replace rotten door and provide non-slip floor covering. £1,500
Ty'r Ysgol and Gerddi Glasfryn - Repair and paint window frames and exterior woodwork. £1,500
Ty'n Fron Fitting of cones and re-marking pedestrian crossing at car park to )
aid traffic management. £2K
Park Street - Re-marking of car park Park Street and removal of kerb. £1K 2
Park Street - Replace exterior door with window to provide ventilation to classroom. £2K 2
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Leaks to New Building
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Toilet Refurbishment to Main Building £100K
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Fencing to Forest Area on roadside ;:
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Boundary Fencing £30K
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Damp Areas to Toilets in New Building
Ysgol Tir Morfa - Damp Areas to outside walls to New Building
:@,gol Tir Morfa - Faulty Air Vents in KS2 Classrooms & Toilets
Q
:&Iaintenance works to IT server areas in schools £30k
o £1,044,500
Total Estimate & Actuals £1,044,500
Remaining £442,731
Estimated overspend from previous grant £140,729
Total Estimated Remaining £302,002




Cyngor

sir ddinbych &

School Maintenance Grant

Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 679
The Council were allocated an additional £1.388m in March 2019 for

Brief description: expenditure on schools building maintenance. The Council has now been
allocated an additional £1.487m.

Date Completed: 10/11/2020 11:56:25 Version: 4

Completed by: Lisa Walchester

Responsible Service: Education & Children Services

Localities affected by
the proposal:

Who will be affected by | Denbighshire schools will benefit from the additional investment in the
the proposal? school estate.

Whole County,

Was this impact
assessment completed | Yes
as a group?

Page 81



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

* * ( 2 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 18 / 30.

Implications of the score

The proposals are for the allocation of resources on a needs basis based on existing building
knowledge through building condition and suitability information. The proposals are for maintenance
expenditure and this involves amendments or improvements to existing provision rather than direct
amendments to provision. Therefore many factors regarding sustainability will not be directly
impacted.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive :%E;L Al

A resilient Denbighshire Positive — a.
A healthier Denbighshire Neutral [SRSHSEEE |
A more equal Denbighshire Positive Language 1 ST : J
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral A Weles o e :

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Neutral communities Waiee
Ianguage A more equal

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral e

Main conclusions

The overall proposals due to their nature will have a neutral impact. Some elements will be positive
but overall it would be difficult to justify a significant positive impact from a well-being perspective.
Many of the schemes are of relatively low value and whilst the proposals will have a clear positive
impact on the school estate as the proposals involve improving existing assets rather than amending
provision the impact will be more neutral.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

I~ We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

I~ We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

¥ We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 82



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE

WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

The proposed works will improve the efficiency of the school estate and
the investment may have a benefit in the short term on the local
economy.

The scale of the works make additional benefits difficult to achieve.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society Proposed works will impact on the energy efficiency of buildings.

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

The proposed works will improve the condition of the schools estate and
therefore improve its infrastructure.

The additional expenditure may benefit the local economy subject to
procurement routes.

Due to the nature of the proposed works there would be limited scope for
community benefits and training packages based on works proposed.

Due to the nature of the proposed works there would be limited scope for
community benefits and training packages based on works proposed.

N/A

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society N/A

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Positive

The works to be undertaken in certain areas will assist the reduction of

energy and fuel consumption and assist a resilient Denbighshire.

Page 83



Further actions

. The scale of the works make additional benefits difficult to achieve.
required

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the

natural environment N/A

Biodiversity in the

built environment N/A

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Where appropriate there will be requirement for recycling of building
materials etc

Reduced energy/fuel Elements of the proposed works may improve the energy efficiency of
consumption buildings

People’s awareness
of the environment N/A
and biodiversity

Flood risk

management N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the

natural environment N/A
Biodiversity in the N/A
built environment
Reducing waste,

reusing and N/A
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel N/A

consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment N/A
and biodiversity

Flood risk

N/A
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

The proposals will have a limited impact on a healthier Denbighshire,
improvements to buildings will have an impact on pupils health and
wellbeing.

Justification for
impact

Further actions

required The scope of the proposed works will impact on maximising the positives.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 84



A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and

Improvements to school buildings will support the health and well-being
by providing an improved environment for learning.

well-being

Access to good N/A
quality, healthy food
People’s emotional

and mental well- N/A

being
Access to healthcare N/A

Participation in

leisure opportunities N/A

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and N/A
support health and
well-being

Access to good

quality, healthy food VA

People’s emotional
and mental well- N/A
being

Access to healthcare N/A

Participation in

leisure opportunities N/A

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for Overall the impact will be positive due to the improvements in access to
impact buildings from some of the proposed works.

Further actions Issues around access will be considered by these schemes in addition to
required the block allocation for such works.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 85



Improving the well-

being of people with
protected

characteristics. The

nine protected
characteristics are:

age; disability;

gender Some elements of the works will improve access arrangements for
reassignment; schools.
marriage or civil

partnership;

pregnancy and

maternity; race;

religion or belief;

sex; and sexual

orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or N/A
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or

educational N/A
outcomes
People in poverty N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

N/A

People who suffer
discrimination or N/A
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or

educational N/A
outcomes
People in poverty N/A

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral Page 86



Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

The proposals will have a neutral impact on a Denbighshire of cohesive
communities. There will be some improvements to school site security
through some of the work to be undertaken on a minor scale and this
extent is the rationale behind a neutral impact.

These works will have limited impact and its difficult to seek additional
positives.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of

the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

Elements of work to school sites will improve the safety of pupils

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

The proposals within the allocation will involve some expenditure within
welsh medium schools. However this will not have a significant impact on
people using Welsh or promoting the Welsh Language.

The works will have limited impact on the welsh language.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

N/A
N/A

/A Page 87



Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh N/A

Promoting the Welsh

N/A
language

Culture and heritage N/A

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral
The nature of the works with the proposals including over 30 potential
Justification for schemes will provide low opportunity to securing community benefits.
impact Existing frameworks will be used which involve some local contractors /
suppliers.

Further actions

. The small scope of some of the works reduces opportunities in this area.
required

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights N/A

Broader service
provision in the local N/A
area or the region

The works will have limited scope for community benefits as the majority
of schemes will be of relatively low value less than £25k

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply N/A
chains

Human rights N/A

Broader service
provision in the local N/A
area or the region

Page 88



Cyngor

sir ddinbych v}
| A 4

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT GROUP

County Council

BUSINESS CASE — CAPITAL INVESTMENT

This Business Case provides justification for undertaking a project. The completed form will be reviewed
by the Strategic Investment Group who will make a recommendation to Council whether the bid should
be approved and included within the Capital Plan. All sections should be completed and evidence of

costs will need to be supplied.

For details of Strategic Investment Group meetings and deadlines for the submission of this form, please

contact Richard Humphreys, Capital & Technical Finance Team on ext 6144.

Project Name:

February Floods Recovery Funding 2020-21

Project Reference:

Project Manager:

Tim Towers — Asset and Risk Manager

Workstream:

Connected Communities

Head of Service/Project Tony Ward Lead member: Councillor Brian Jones
Sponsor
Service: Head of LM Portfolio: Waste, Transport and the
Highways, Environment
Facilities and
Environmental
Services
Form completed by: Tim Towers Date: 30" September 2020
Service Accountant: Martyn Dodd Date: 30" September 2020

PROJECT TYPE

Please categorise your project type. Mark one box only.

| SMALL | ] | MEDIUM [ X | | LARGE |

DECISION SOUGHT FROM SIG:

To approve acceptance of £1,311,280 funding from
Welsh Government to cover damage to highways
assets as aresult of severe storms in February 2020

l1|Page

Page 89




Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
COUmy Council v

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Highlights the key points in the Business Case to include:-

¢ what the project will achieve / important benefits
e estimated costs
e how the project will be funded

In February and March 2020 a series of severe storms crossed Wales and these resulted in significant
flooding and consequent damage to roads and bridges at locations right across the country. In the
immediate aftermath of these events the Welsh Government informed local authorities that they would
make funding available to pay for both the initial response and clear up to the flooding and also to pay
for damage that occurred to assets as a result of the weather.

Due to the funding mechanism in place Denbighshire did not qualify for any monies to cover the
response and clear up as our costs, although significant, did not meet the threshold required to trigger
the support offered.

In the case of the offer to support with costs to repair damage however, the response has been more
positive and it is this element that is the subject of this paper.

Appendix A shows the Guidance document that was issued by Welsh Government and for the
purposes of this document it is paragraphs 20 to 25 of that document that are relevant.

The chronology of events relating to this is that a series of storms on consecutive weekends in
February and March caused significant flooding and across the country it became clear that these had
caused a lot of damage so the Welsh Government sent out documents asking for councils to submit a
list of works and cost estimates for their areas. These submissions had to be with them by 30" April
2020. We were aware of some obvious failures such as the near collapse of Pont Drefechan near
Llanynys but a full assessment of the network was required to gather as much information on
conditions as possible.

Regrettably, at almost exactly the same time, the Coronovirus lockdown restrictions came into play and
this severely hampered our ability to undertake a full assessment and it is possible that some damage
was missed. In fact we know this to be the case because two problems have arisen since including the
subsidence of the road close to the Salmon Leap on the Alwen near Corwen which has now been
repaired at a cost of £186,000.

Not only did the lockdown affect our ability to do the assessments it has also created problems with
subsequent procurement and contractor availability matters but thankfully the Structures team have
worked incredibly hard through the Summer and achieved considerable success in getting a lot of
remedial work done such that we have been able to spend a large amount money. Similarly, the
landslide in Cyfylliog has also been put out to contract and is now on site.

Currently we are using Capital funding from our Denbighshire allocation for 2020/21 to fund these
works but this funding is meant to be spent on other priorities and therefore acceptance of the £1.3
million from Welsh Government will allow this funding to be put back to the schemes it was meant to
be used for in the first place — albeit with a necessary accrual into 2021/22 as we haven’t been able to
deliver the programmed work for obvious reasons.

Achieving the desire to repair the remaining works on the list within the required timescale i.e by the
end of March 2021 will be challenging but this is achievable and it is vital that we do so in order to get
these damaged assets back to the standards we require of them.

2|Page

Page 90



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
County Council v

BUSINESS OPTIONS

Analysis and reasoned recommendation for the base business options of: do nothing / do the minimal
or do something

Option title: | Do nothing — maintain the existing situation / Do minimum

Please provide brief details:

Although Covid 19 has prevented us from carrying out a full assessment of the damage caused by the storms
we are confident that our submission has captured the most severe issues. Our duty to maintain these assets
in good order remains undiminished and therefore we are statutory responsibility to restore them so the Do
Nothing option is not a viable one.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more X Time Takes longer to deliver
Costs the same Takes the same to
deliver
Costs less Is quicker to deliver X
Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality No impact on benefits
Is a lower quality X Worsens benefits X

What is the main reason this option has not been selected?

It would be a breach of our legal duty

Option title: | Utilise Denbighshire County Council funding

Please provide brief details:

As outlined above, we have no real option but to repair this damage so that our statutory duty is met so the
issue then comes down to sources of funding. One potential would be for the Service to put in a bid to SIG for
the funding that would match the £1,300,000 required. The advantage in doing this is that it would open up the
possibility of us rolling forward the funding into 2021/22 and thus give us time to plan and programme these
works and, where necessary, get various consents in place. For example the work in Llandrillo requires us to
liaise with Natural Resources Wales and there is the possibility that this may delay the scheme.

The disadvantage to this proposal is that the county is already under significant financial pressure due to a
number of current issues of which the Covid 19 implications are probably paramount. Nevertheless, this work
still needs doing.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver

Costs the same X Takes the same to X
deliver

Costs less Is quicker to deliver

Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality X No impact on benefits X
Is a lower quality Waorsens benefits

3|Page

Page 91




Cyngor

sir ddinbych

County Council v
What is the main reason this option has not been selected?

Funding this work utilising DCC finance will either result in existing money being diverted away from schemes
that have already been identified as corporate priorities — namely road condition and the structures backlog —
or it will mean that legitimate work in 2021/22 cannot be funded. This latter point does not necessarily mean
highway work of course because ultimately SIG will decide on how the various bids are managed but they will
be constrained by this burden caused by the storm damage.

Option title: | Utilise Welsh Government funding

Please provide brief details:

As outlined above, we have no real option but to repair this damage so that our statutory duty is met so the
issue then comes down to sources of funding. It would appear that the funding that will be provided by Welsh
Government covers 100% of the cost of our needs and there is no ongoing financial commitment being placed
on the council. In fact, on the contrary, this funding allows us to bring these assets up to ‘as new’ and therefore
it removes our liability for them for future years.

The disadvantage to this proposal is that it does appear to be time limited such that all works are completed by
the end of March 2021. We have already made great progress in repairing the issues and remain confident that
we can deliver the vast bulk of the rest of the work before the deadline. Appendix B lists the schemes and gives
an indication of the likelihood for completion.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver
Costs the same X Takes the same to X
deliver
Costs less Is quicker to deliver
Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality X No impact on benefits X
Is a lower quality Worsens benefits

What is the main reason this option has been selected?

This is the recommended option as it provides much needed support without giving the Authority any future
financial consequences.

EXPECTED BENEFITS

The benefits that the project will deliver expressed in measurable terms against the situation as it exists
prior to the project

This funding allows us to repair these assets and secure them in a good condition for many years to come

EXPECTED DIS-BENEFITS

Outcomes perceived as negative by one or more stakeholders

It seems that the funding is time limited so ensuring we can meet that deadline could create operational issues
but in most cases these don’t appear to be insurmountable.

4|Page

Page 92



TIMESCALE

SII‘ ddlnb

Counfy Council

€

ych

o

Over which the project will run (summary of the Project Plan) and the period over which the

benefits will be realised

Date Milestone

March 2021 All applicable works need to be completed

CAPITAL COSTS — CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed.

e Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT

department.

e Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or

Building Services.

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project:

Enter details of cost element below:

Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)

Client side project management

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below:

2020/21

2021/22

Future
Years

All Years
Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)

Client side project management

Land/property acquisition

Land preparation/remediation

Demolition and/or site security

Construction, refurbishment or maintenance

BREEAM rating of “Excellent”

Security measures (CCTV, door entry, etc)

Fire prevention measures (sprinklers, etc)

External landscaping and other works

Land/property acquisition

Highways work

£1,311,280

£1,311,280

ICT infrastructure and hardware

Fixtures & fittings

5|Page

Page 93



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbyc L
Counfy Council v

h

Furniture

Planning/Building Regulation Costs

Desigh Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)

Legal Costs and Fees

Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (eg gateway review)

TOTAL £1,311,280 £1,311,280

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources

Enter details of funding source Status: 2020/21 2021/22 Future TOTAL
Years

Welsh Government Applied for | £1,311,280 £1,311,280

TOTAL £1,311,280 £1,311,280

REVENUE COST IMPACT
TO BE COMPLETED FOR ALL PROJECTS

In considering whether a project should be developed due regard should be made to the potential impact

on revenue budgets.

If the activity will result in a requirement for additional revenue funding, please provide details

below:
What is the impact of this project in terms of the annual Existing Post- Increase/
revenue requirement for: Revenue project Decrease
Budget Revenue
Budget
staff costs (salaries and associated) No Change

property maintenance and servicing costs

Unquantifiable

reduction

other property related costs (rental, insurance, etc)

claims but this

unquantifiable

Possible
reduction in
third party

is

OVERALL REVENUE REQUIREMENT

Nil

Please provide brief details of the revenue impact of this project:

o \Where revenue savings are forecast, you should detail what is proposed for the saving (e.g.
reduction of an existing revenue budget, re-allocation of revenue to alternative services area,

etc)

o Where revenue increases are forecast, you should provide details of how the revenue shortfall

will be addressed.

6|Page

Page 94

In this instance you should also append a three year surplus/deficit forecast.



Cyngor

sir ddinbych &

o Details of any one-off revenue cost requirements that may be required post-project
implementation (e.g. recruitment, redundancies, etc). DO NOT include any costs detailed in the
capital section of this Business Case

NONE

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Please provide details of proposed project management — Establishment of Project Board etc

N/A

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS / HEALTH & SAFETY

This section should identify how the activity will help Denbighshire meet any of its statutory

requirements. Please include any Health & Safety Issues that the activity will address in this section.
Please leave blank if not applicable.

The project helps ensure that the Council meets the statutory duty under Section 41 of the Highways Act
1980 to maintain the highway and our general duty of care to road users and adjacent landowners

7|Page

Page 95



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych "?

Counfy Council

CARBON MANAGEMENT IMPACT
Please consult with Denbighshire’s Principal Energy Manager before completing this section.

Denbighshire has committed to reducing its carbon emissions by 15% by 2020. The Business Case
requires you to make a forecast for the anticipated carbon emissions impact of the project. Please mark
a cross in the appropriate box.

Forecasts: Annual Carbon Annual Carbon Carbon
(current) Equivalent | (Post Equivalent | Variance
Project)

Energy consumption:
(UNIT = kWh)

Mileage of Denbighshire Fleet vehicles:
(UNIT = miles travelled)

Tonnes of waste produced going to landfill:
(UNIT =tonnes)

Tonnes of waste produced being recycled:
(UNIT =tonnes)

Mileage of Business Travel (personal
vehicles):
(UNIT = miles travelled)

TOTAL CARBON EMISSIONS

Please provide brief details of the carbon impact of this project, and detail specific actions that will be
taken to reduce carbon emissions. If carbon emissions are expected to increase as a result of this
project, please provide details of proposed actions to compensate for this increase in other areas of the
Service’s activity.

N/A

8|Page

Page 96



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych "?

Counfy Council

BIODIVERSITY IMPACT
Please consult with Denbighshire’s Biodiversity Officer before completing this section:
joel.walley@denbighshire.gov.uk

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure compliance and enforcement of the habitats regulations (as
amended in 2007) and the NERC Biodiversity Duty (2006). At this pre-feasibility stage, what is the
anticipated impact on biodiversity of the project. Please mark a cross in the appropriate box.

Will this project impact on a habitat that supports living organisms Yes No X
(plant or animal)?

If you have answered yes to the above question, please complete all the following biodiversity sections.
If answered no please leave blank

THREATENED/PROTECTED SPECIES Yes No X
Will this project impact on any protected or threatened species as
defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP)?

ALL SPECIES (including threatened/protected) Current Post- Variance
Forecasts: number project (+/-)
number

Number of plant species present:

Number of animal species present:

TOTAL NUMBER OF SPECIES PRESENT

Please provide brief details of the action you will be taking in association with this project to protect or
enhance biodiversity. Specific reference should be made to the mitigation strategy if the project impacts
on any protected or threatened species as defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan
(LBAP).

9|Page

Page 97



Cyngor

5|r ddlnbych
- ity CoURE v

MAJOR RISKS TO THE PROJECT
A summary of the key risks associated with the project together with the likely impact and plans should
they occur (Please also add to your project risk register)

Key Risk Likely Impact | Mitigating Action

Medium As much as possible we have addressed the weather
Adverse Weather susceptible works through this Summer
Contractor Availability Low Use of framework agreements

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Please list any supporting documents that accompany this Business Case

See Appendices which detail the conditions of the financial support from Welsh Government.

Appendix B lists the schemes that were submitted to receive the support plus their current status in terms
the remedial works being undertaken.

ANNUAL CAPITAL BIDS — BLOCK ALLOCATIONS

Please provide details of expenditure and commitments for allocations received in the current financial year.

COUNTY LANDLORD STATEMENT
10|Page Page98



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
denbighshire q&&

County Council

Please provide a statement from the County Landlord and where applicable the recommendation of the
Asset Management Group

Highways works are not within the scope of the County Landlord’s property
responsibilities, so no County Landlord Statement is required.

Supplied by: Tom Booty Date: 18 Oct 20

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER STATEMENT

The proposal to approve acceptance of £1,311,280 funding from Welsh Government
to cover damage to highways assets as a result of severe storms in February 2020 is
fully supported. There are some question remaining around how formal the offer of the
funding has been made at the time of writing this. If confirmed the service will be able
to carry forward DCC capital funding that is currently being used in order to deliver the
programmed work that has had to be delayed.

Supplied by: Steve Gadd Date: 20 Nov 20
VERIFICATION:

Project
Manager:
Project
Sponsor:

Name: Position:

Signature: Date:

For use by Finance:

Result of S.1.G. Review

Date of Meeting

1l1|Page

Page 99



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
denbighzhire'g

County Council

Approval

Code

12|Page

Page 100



APPENDIX 9

Capital / Estimated
Ref|Location Detail Action/programme Revenue Cost STATUS
2020-21
1|Pont Drefechan |Bridge severely damaged Bridge strengthened Capital £115,000|Complete
2|Bryn yr Efail Bridge severely damaged Requires replacing Capital £95,000|At tender stage so will be delivered
Severe damage to approach
3|Penstryt Culvert, Ljand to soffit Requires extensive repairs | Capital £60,000|Complete
Flood defence wall
4|Llandrillo damaged Requires extensive repairs | Capital £305,000(Can't be delivered see note below
Landslide has taken out the |Slope stabilisation and
5|Cyffylliog road into the village ground beam required Capital £450,000(On site so will be delivered
Carriageway edge is getting |Install gabion baskets as a
6|Abbey Road, Rhu{eroded badly minimum Capital £1,280|Works complete
Drainage failed and washed |Reconstruct drain and
7|Gwyddelwern out field reinstate field Capital £15,000|Deliverable
8|Nantglyn Collapsed culvert Rebuild Capital £10,000|Deliverable
9{Nantglyn Scour to embankment Rebuild Capital £20,000|Deliverable
10]|Llandegla Highway system failed Upgrade system Capital £20,000|Deliverable
11|Cynwyd Collapsed embankment Reconstruct Capital £40,000|Deliverable
Amend design to aid
12[Pen y Pigyn Culve|Severely blocked future cleaning Revenue £10,000
13[Denbigh Green |Highway system failed Upgrade system Capital Deliverable
14|Gwyddelwern culv|Damage to important asset |Replace invert Capital £15,000|Deliverable
15(Cysgodfa, Denbig|Damage to important asset |Replace invert Capital £15,000|Deliverable
A few bridges were washed
16|Footbridges away Reinstate various PROW [Capital £10,000|Unlikely
Reinstate as these are
Severe damage to a number [important routes in the
17 [ Cyffylliog of roads in the area area Capital £60,000|Deliverable
Repair bridge and
reinstate washed out
18|Llanddyn, Llangoll|Access to isolated farm gabions Capital £20,000|Deliverable
Reinstate as these are
Severe damage to a number [important routes in the
19[Nantglyn of roads in the area area Capital £60,000|Deliverable
Capital £ 1,311,280
Revenue £ 10,000

Page

101

The Llandrillo scheme involves the
needs for consent from NRW and we
will struggle to get these in place and
to plan for this work within the
timescales. | would suggest we swap
this for two other new works that
weren't listed previously but are
achievable:-

Salmon Leap, Corwen £186,000

Acer Ddu Culvert, Dee Valley £50,000



This page is intentionally left blank



Assessment - Well-being Page 1 of 11

County Council

Acceptance of Welsh
Government funding to address
storm damage

Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: | 832

Provision of repairs to damaged highway assets including road

Brief description: surfaces and structures / culverts
Date Completed: | 01/10/2020 14:24:50 Version: 1
Completed hy: Tim Towers

Responsible Service: | Highways & Environmental Services

Localities affected by

|
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected

R
by the proposal? oad users

Page 103
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 2 of 11

Was this impact
assessment
completed as a
group?

No

Page 104
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire. gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 3 of 11

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND
CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how
the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a
manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability
of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

* * ( 2 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 19/ 30.

Implications of the score

This proposal is to repair / replace assets on a like for like basis and therefore there is little scope for
improvement of the score. The projects are constrained by budget / time constraints and the
availability of land

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

. . . A globell
A prosperous Denbighshire Positive ,csﬂ.ﬁnﬁ’.u’.’u ADV;:?:;OUS

Wales

A resilient Denbighshire Negative
. . . " A Wales o
A healthier Denbighshire Positive Ve Cull e
and thriving
A more equal Denbighshire Neutral Welsh
Language
A Denbighshire of cohesive -
" Positive
communities A Wales ot
cahesive A healthier
. . . iti VWales
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and ColITELes
Neutral

thriving Welsh language

A more equal
Wales

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

As this funding will allow us to repair damaged assets and reopen vital routes the outcome is
generally positive but much of the work is designed to repair on a like for like basis so the effect here
is predominantly neutral.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment
(] We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

[J We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal
Page 105

http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 4 of 11

Page 106
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 5 of 11

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE,
WALES AND THE WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for

A i ie vi —_—
impact good quality road network is vital to so many areas of daily life

Further actions

. Any negative effects will be short term
required

Positive impacts identified:
A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

This project enhances the quality of the infrastructure

Economic

development A good quality highway network boosts the economy

Quality skills for the  Much of this work relies on skilled labour whilst a good quality network
long term has been shown to enhance the local economy

Quality jobs for the

Good infrastructure has been shown to boost the local economy
long term

Childcare N/A
Negative impacts identified:
A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

None

Economic

Short term negative effects while the work is undertaken due to disruption
development

Quality skills for the

None
long term
Quality jobs for the
long term
Childcare N/A

Page 107
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 6 of 11

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Negative

Justification for By its very nature the processes and end result of this work tend to be
impact detrimental to the environment

Further actions Where possible we will overlay existing roads or recycle material to
required reduce waste. On structural assets we will also re-use all of the masonry

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk Many of the assets that will be repaired as a result of this funding
management contribute to flood relief / prevention

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Highway maintenance usually produces waste which cannot be recycled
easily

Reduced energy/fuel

. Resurfacing materials use a lot of energy in their production
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Page 108
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 7 of 11

Overall Impact Positive
Justification for A good road network encourages people to get out more and provides for
impact a safer environment

Further actions

. N/A
required

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical

environment that

encourage and This proposal provides for a safer envirnment
support health and

well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare A good network aids movement

Participation in

A . : .
lelsure opportunities good quality network encourages cycling and walking

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People's emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Page 109
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Page 8 of 11

This proposal will result in a like for like replacement of these damaged
assets and therefore the scope for improvement is negligible but they will

certainly not be negative

N/A

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

Negative impacts identified:

http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832

Page 110

02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 9 of 11

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Positive
Justification for Users and residents dislike poor quality roads but tend not to comment
impact about good quality ones

Further actions

required NIA

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities

and individuals All of this work will provide a safer network

Communi
artici atit:n and Repairing these assets will give added resilience to many rural
ll')e.?-ilier':ce communities in particular

The attractiveness of
so Good quality roads and bridges add to the attractiveness of an area

the area
Connected Repairing these assets will give added resilience to many rural
communities communities in particular

Page 111
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 10 of 11

Repairing these assets will give added resilience to many rural

Rural resilience e .
communities in particular

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for

. This proposal has no effect on these issues
impact

Further actions

. N/A
required

Positive impacts identified:
People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage
Negative impacts identified:
People using Weilsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive
Justification for Repairing damaged assets and bringing them back into use can only be
impact positive

Page 112
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Assessment - Well-being Page 11 of 11

Further actions

. N/A
required

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Some of this work will allow closed roads to reopen so that must be
beneficial to local supply chains
Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

© 2020 - Denbighshire County Council

Page 113
http://wellbeingad.denbighshire.gov.uk/Assessments/PrintSummary/en/832 02/10/2020



Page 114



STRATEGIC INVESTMENT GROUP

Cyngor

sir ddinbych v}
| A 4

County Council

BUSINESS CASE — CAPITAL INVESTMENT

This Business Case provides justification for undertaking a project. The completed form will be reviewed
by the Strategic Investment Group who will make a recommendation to Council whether the bid should
be approved and included within the Capital Plan. All sections should be completed and evidence of
costs will need to be supplied.

For details of Strategic Investment Group meetings and deadlines for the submission of this form, please

contact Richard Humphreys, Capital & Technical Finance Team on ext 6144.

Project Name:

CHILDCARE OFFER CAPITAL GRANT PROGRAMME

Project Reference:

Project Manager:

James Wood - Principal Manager Education Services / Childcare
Development Manager

Workstream:

Head of Service/Project
Sponsor

Geraint Davies
/ Rhiain Morrlle

Lead member:

Councillor Huw Hilditch
Roberts

Service: Education and | LM Portfolio: Education, Children and
Children’s Young People
Services

Form completed by: Carwyn Date:
Edwards

Service Accountant: Date:

PROJECT TYPE

Please categorise your project type. Mark one box only.

| SMALL |

| MEDIUM | x

| LARGE |

DECISION SOUGHT FROM SIG:

To recommend to Cabinet to proceed with all three
identified projects subject to the decision by Welsh
Government to approve the application to reallocate
their funding.

l1|Page

Page 115




Cyngor

sir ddlnbych L
COUmy Council v

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Highlights the key points in the Business Case to include:-

¢ what the project will achieve / important benefits
e estimated costs
e how the project will be funded

Summary

In the Autumn of 2018, a report was presented to SIG to seek approval to submit a funding application to the
Welsh Government with the caveat that a further report would be presented to SIG on the completion of further
feasibility work. Denbighshire was successful with the submission and was able to draw down £2,907,772 from
the Child Care Capital Grant for improvements in facilities through construction projects.

The award for improving facilities was as follows:

Project . . . Funding
number Location Setting / Location Awarded
1 Rhyl Cylch Provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant £613,575
2 Denbigh Cylch Provision at Ysgol Twm o’r £647,380
Nant
3 Rhyl Little Acorns at the Oaktree Centre £1,069,048
St Asaph New Provision at the Welsh £170,000
Language Centre
5 Llangollen New Provision at Ysgol Bryn Collen £407,769
£2,907,772

Alongside to the above award a sum of £121,500 was drawn down in order to distribute to existing early years
providers and childminders in the form of an Equipment and Resource grant. The Equipment and Resource
grant has been distributed and doesn’t fall within the scope of this report.

In addition to the £2,907,772 awarded via the Child Care Capital Grant, £1,380,000 was also awarded to
Denbighshire County Council via the Welsh Medium Development Grant to fund the Welsh Language Centre
which is located on the site of Ysgol Glan Clwyd in St Asaph.

Progress on Construction projects

Following these approvals feasibility work was commissioned for individual projects included in the submission.
As of the spring the cost estimates forecasted a cumulative overspend of £1,012,934 across three projects —
Oaktree Centre, Cylch provision at Ysgol Twm o’r Nant and Cylch provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant. At the same
time the approved project for the Welsh Language Centre was projecting a financial underspend in the region
of £700k.

As a result an application was submitted to Welsh Government seeking permission to reallocate funding to
enable these three projects to proceed by reallocating the resources from the Welsh Language Centre and
seeking additional resources as a top up from the Welsh Government.

Reasons for Cost Increases
The initial applications were based on desk top work as the funding timescales did not allow for detailed

feasibility works to inform the applications. Therefore there was always a risk that as the projects progressed
variations from initial estimates would occur.

2|Page

Page 116



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych L
COUmy Council v

The main reasons are highlighted as follows:-
Oaktree Centre: - The costs increase on the Oaktree project can be attributed to two main factors.

It has been identified that the extension will require a piled foundation due to the ground conditions. In addition
the flood consequence assessment identified the need to raise the floor level to mitigate the flooding risk of this
area of the town of Rhyl.

Cylch Rhyl :- The size of the building has increased to meet a number of challenges. The size of the second
room was required to be increased to ensure adequate space for the numbers envisaged. This would allow
additional children to be accommodated in the facility. This impact, together with additional space for
supporting facilities such as cloak’s and changing rooms has seen an increase of just under 30% of the
footprint of the building. An assessment has been made of this space and the overall view was that the quality
of provision would be impacted by value engineering on the space allocation for the facility.

A number of options have been explored on site for the location of the facility. The initial findings highlighted
the need for careful consideration of the drainage solution for the facility. Both of the possible location options
to site the facility have drainage issues that are much more complex than first thought. Given the size of the
facility and the location on a large school site both options will require some works on the car park to allow for
additional spaces as well as extended footpaths and possibly additional fencing beyond what was originally
envisaged. Canopies in the play area were also not included in the original budget costs.

Cylch Denbigh - the reason for the increase in costs is due to the greater information available regarding the
proposed building and the required external works. These include the retaining wall, paving, pathways, gates
and fences. In addition the cost estimate have been adjusted to reflect the delay in the start of the construction
period from September 2020 until the start of 2021.

Reallocation of funding

The Welsh Language Centre project which also included an allocation of £170,000 from Child Care Capital
Grant has come significantly under the project costs identified at submission stage. As a result an application
was submitted to Welsh Government to reallocate the grant funding awarded to the Council in order to allow
three projects to proceed funded by the underspend of £713,051 on the completed Welsh Language Centre
project and £407,769 from pausing the new provision in Llangollen pending greater cost certainty on these
projects and also assessing the amended need following the establishment of a new provision within the town.

. . . Estimated
Location Setting / Location additional cost
Rhyl Cylch Provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant £563,605
Denbigh Cylch Provision at Ysgol Twm o’r Nant £231,190
Rhyl Little Acorns at the Oaktree Centre £218,139

£1,012,934
Funding Source Total
Underspend - Welsh Language Capital Grant £713,051
New provision at Ysgol Bryn Collen (Paused) £407,769
£1,120,820
3|Page

Page 117



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
¥ colrity Caanci v

This would leave a balance of £107,886. It is proposed that the position be reviewed when greater cost
certainty is achieved on the other three projects. Options include using the £107,886 to meet any further
overspend, assist the Council’s proposed Band B project at the site of Ysgol Bryn Collen / Ysgol Gwernant to
improve child care provision to using the funds to assist wider needs in the area via small capital grants.

Current Position

The Welsh Governments Investment Panel considered this request for the reallocation of resources in October
2020. The recommendation of the Panel has been forwarded to the relevant Cabinet Secretaries for
consideration and approval. A verbal update will be provided at the meeting.

Detail - Background to Projects

The Welsh Government has committed to providing 30 hours of government-funded early education and
childcare for up to 48 weeks of the year to all three and four year olds of eligible working parents. The 30 hours
will be made up of the existing minimum 10 hours of Foundation Phase and up to 20 hours of childcare with a
registered provider.

A key policy driver for the Welsh Government is that the 30 hours offer is as clear and easy as possible for
working parents to understand and children to access. As part of this, we need to enable parents, wherever
possible, to be able to drop their children off and pick them up from the same site and access a seamless 30
hours of childcare, although wrap around provision will continue to be an important part of the answer for some
children and parents.

The primary purpose of the capital programme is therefore to facilitate and support the co-location of the
Foundation Phase and childcare provision wherever possible. This is in line with our Prosperity for All
commitment to “introduce a new model of Community Learning Centres, providing extended services with
childcare, parenting support, family learning and community access to facilities built around the school day’.

Additional information
Project 1 — Cylch provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant, Rhyl (Construction)

The sustainability of Welsh Medium childcare provision in north Denbighshire has been a concern for the last
few years. The main issues relates to the suitability and appropriateness of the two venues in Rhyl and
Rhuddlan used by Cylch Aberclwyd and Cylch Rhuddlan.

Cylch Aberclwyd was based at Capel Clwyd, Clwyd Street, Rhyl and registered with CIW for 19 children. The
Cylch was based upstairs in the Chapel which is not accessible and a significant disadvantage, particularly for
the mother and baby group as parents cannot get their prams up the stairs. A similar situation also existed for
Cylch Rhuddlan based at Capel Ebeneser in Rhuddlan. Again the Cylch was based upstairs, up very narrow
steep steps. There was no access for prams nor wheelchairs. The setting was registered with CIW for 16
children.

Since September 2020 the two provisions have merged and are now using a space within Ysgol Dewi Sant on
a temporary basis. The room used is small and the new setting is already close to capacity.

It is proposed to create a new facility on the Ysgol Dewi Sant site to accommodate this new Cylch which will
create 60 Welsh medium childcare places. There is a risk that locating this provision will create a gap in
provision within the Rhyl Flying Start locality, however this will be addressed through a new Welsh language
provision being introduced within the expansion of the Oaktree Integrated Children’s Centre (Project 3).

4|Page

Page 118




Cyngor

sir ddlnbych L
COUmy Council v

Project 2 — Cylch Provision at Ysgol Twm o’r Nant, Denbigh (Construction)

Cylch Bodawen has operated as a Welsh Medium childcare provider in the town of Denbigh for over 50 years.
Itis based in an old school house. The provision is currently registered with CIW for 26 children and also
provides Foundation Phase Early Education. The provision currently provides childcare for 50 individual
children and is a feeder provision for Ysgol Twm o’r Nant.

The current venue is unsuitable and in poor condition. The provision is limited by the venue and is only able to
accept children from 2 and a half years old as there is no space for baby changing facilities. The building is
very old, with cracked windows, and parts of the building are not heated. In their last CIW inspection referred to
the temperature in the building as a potential concern.

The landlord is Capel Mawr in Denbigh who wants to sign to a new lease agreement which requires the Cylch
to be fully responsible for the maintenance of the building and have tripled the current rent.

The Cylch are currently in dispute with the landlord regarding signing the new lease. In the most recent
correspondent the landlord stated that if the lease was not agreed to that the committee would be given 12
months’ notice to leave the property. There is a risk that Denbighshire will lose Welsh Medium childcare
provision for 50 children in the Denbigh area if a suitable venue is not secured.

Several parents have told members of the current committee that they are choosing not to send their children
to the Cylch due to the condition of the building and visible evidence of damp in the unheated areas of the
building. Parents have also commented on the difficulties in access the venue by vehicle due to the narrow
lanes and lack of parking.

Our proposal is to relocate Cylch Bodawen from its current building to the Ysgol Twm o’r Nant site in Denbigh
creating a Welsh medium provision with wrap around support and holiday provision. This relocation will secure
and provide sustainability for up to 55 Welsh Medium childcare places.

Project 3 — Oaktree Centre, Rhyl (Construction).

The Oaktree Integrated Children’s Centre is situated on the grounds of Christchurch Primary School, located in
the South West ward of Rhyl which is the 1st most deprived area in the county and the 2nd most deprived ward
in Wales. The Oaktree Centre provides integrated support and early intervention services for children, families
and young people and offers a range of services from parenting programmes and support, Family Information
Services, Inclusive Holiday Play Provision, Open Access Play Events, Health Visitor and Midwifery clinic,
Speech and Language Therapy, Youth Services, Parent and Toddler Groups and Childcare and Early
Education within the Little Acorns Nursery provision.

Little Acorns is registered with CIW (Care Inspectorate Wales) to provide high quality and affordable child care
and education for up to 77 children at any one time aged from 0 to 12 years. The aim of the setting is to provide
high quality, affordable childcare and early year’s education to give children a flying start in life and also to
enable parent to be able to gain employment which furthermore reduces poverty in the family. The setting is
open from 8am to 6pm from Monday to Friday. The setting has:

. Self-contained Baby unit

Toddler Room

Preschool Room

After School

Holiday club

The setting offers Flying Start provision providing children of 12.5 hours free childcare per week and also
delivers Foundation Phase Curriculum for eligible 3 year olds for 10 hours per week. There are a number of
sessions offered throughout the day including full and half day care, sessional care and playgroup, wrap
around care and after school session. The setting provides care and early year’s education for at least 122
children per day. Little Acorns is regularly inspected by Estyn and CIW and following the June 2018 CIW
inspection, has been rated as Excellent in all 4 areas.

5|Page

Page 119



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
COUmy Council v

There are currently 184 children registered to use the setting which offer bespoke childcare to adapt to each
family’s individual needs. Little Acorns works closely with Christchurch School and provides wrap around
service for children in maintained nursery education. There is a robust transition programme in place between
Little Acorns and Christchurch Early Years Department which ensure a seamless transition for children
receiving early years education in non-maintained to maintained provision and this was highlighted as Sector
Leading in the Estyn and CIW inspections.

Little Acorns has been full to capacity every year for the last 3 years. It has operated a waiting list and over the
last 12 months, this has risen from the usual 20 to around 30 children. Whilst the waiting list demonstrates
latent demand, this does not demonstrate the number of parents who require immediate childcare and the
setting can refuse up to 3 families per day the offer of childcare places. As childcare is purely parental choice,
the high standard and reputation of the care and education which Little Acorns provides, this is evidenced in
the demand of the provision which currently, Little Acorns cannot meet.

Extending the Oaktree Centre will ensure that demand can be accommodated and families are able to fully
benefit from the Childcare Offer. It will alleviate any pressures which will be raised through introduction of the
free 30 hour childcare offer and any further increase in demand for high quality provision. Extending the
Oaktree Centre will also support the findings of the most recent Childcare Sufficiency Audit which identified a
need to increase childcare provision in the area.

This project will deliver three new childcare rooms and involves extending the Oaktree Centre by approximately
230m2 and remodelling a ground floor section of the existing building. Two rooms will be located in the
extension and one in the remodelled ground floor area. Planning permission for the extension was approved by
planning committee on the 15t of July 2020.

The key benefits of the project are as follows:

e The project will increase the registered capacity of the Oaktree Centre by 49 from 77 to 126.
The additional capacity of 49 would be split as follows:-
33 places in English medium (overall 66 half day sessions, 33 in morning and 33 in afternoon)
16 places in Welsh medium (overall 32 half day sessions, 16 in morning and 16 in afternoon)
As some children will only access one session (morning or afternoon) up to 98 additional children
could be cared for through this project.

e The proposed new Welsh medium provision at the Oaktree Centre would increase the availability of
Welsh medium childcare in Rhyl and support the objectives of Denbighshire’s Welsh in Education
Strategic Plan to increase the proportion of learners who study Welsh as a first language. Currently
Rhyl has one Welsh medium preschool provision for a population of over 24,000 (3,400 Welsh
speakers) in comparison to Denbigh which has two provisions for a population of just over 8,600 (3,000
Welsh Speakers).

e The additional wrap around and after school space delivered through the project will also be used in
the school holidays to expand the number of children accessing inclusive holiday clubs and allow
Denbighshire to provide more supported activities for children with additional needs.

Project 4 — Welsh Language Centre, St Asaph

The Welsh Language Centre was completed in August 2020. It has a facility to accommodate a childcare
provider which includes a dedicated room with age specific toilets, kitchen area and independent access to a
secure outdoor play area with a canopy. Mudiad Meithrin are currently advertising for staff with the intention to
starting providing childcare once staff are appointed. This Welsh medium provision will be able to
accommodate up to 20 children and will assist the Council in meeting its commitment within its Welsh Medium
Strategic Plan to strengthen the availability of Welsh medium preschool provision.

Redirection of the underspend of the Welsh Language Capital Grant towards additional projects will continue to
support the objectives of Denbighshire’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan by contributing towards

6|Page

Page 120



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
COUmy Council v

strengthening the long term future of existing provision. The improved links with local Welsh Medium primary
schools will assist ensuring that children are not lost to Welsh Medium education when the transition occurs
from pre-school to Nursery provision.

Project 5 — New Provision at Ysgol Bryn Collen, Llangollen

Since the submission of the original application there have been changes in the supply of childcare within the
South of the county. A new day nursery has opened offering 61 places along with 2 Cylchoedd offering 38
places (19 each). Of these settings, 2 operate all year round providing afterschool and holiday club which has
increased the out of school provision by 80 places to now having 225 out of school places available in the
South of the county. There are now 11 settings offering a total capacity of 292 childcare places and 6 of these
settings have successfully received capital grants totalling £28,432.16 from the Childcare Offer Small Grants
Scheme which has contributed to the enhancement of their provision and supported the increase in supply of
spaces on offer in the South of the county.

There is now more than sufficient out of school provision in the area now compared to the number of primary
school aged children being 577 across the South of the County and 277 in the town of Llangollen. The addition
of another facility could over saturate the market which could lead to settings sustainability being compromised
locally.

At present this is considered sufficient to meet current demand within the area.

Strategic Fit with Welsh Government policy

The criteria for Welsh Government funding is as follows:

. Funding will prioritised for projects which aim to provide a seamless transition between the Foundation
Phase and childcare elements of the offer;
. Whilst the capital programme will meet 100% of the costs, priority will be given to funding childcare

settings which form part of a much larger project (where appropriate) which utilise other sources of
funding such as 21st Century Schools or Welsh language funding;

. Where a new setting is to be developed (even within school grounds) this should be done in
consultation with the childcare sector and should only be Local Authority maintained setting where
there is no other viable option. Funding will not be provided for provision which would be in direct
competition with the non-maintained sector; and

. Private providers will only be funded where there are robust processes in places to ensure the security
of the investment.

The Welsh Government has also advised that Local Authorities should consider having a small funding pot
which it can use to fund small projects e.g. specialist furniture to enable a disabled child to take up a childcare
place or equipment for a childminder

This project addresses the requirement of the Welsh Government initiative as it:

¢ Intends to co locate provision on existing school sites aiding transition between Foundation Phase and
childcare elements.

e Isfocused on areas which will are proposed to form part of Band B of the 215t Century Schools
proposals.

e Responds to gaps in provision as identified by the latest Childcare Sufficient Audit including in Welsh
medium provision.

¢ Includes a small funding pot as part of the bid.

The funding will also support the childcare sector in other ways, including:
e Supporting the growth and sustainability of the childcare sector across Wales, helping to create high-
quality jobs in the sector;
e Improving the physical quality of childcare settings;
e Supporting the expansion of Welsh medium provision, in line with the Welsh Government’s ‘Cymraeg
2050’ strategy; and
e Supporting SEN and ALN provision.

7|Page

Page 121



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
County Council v

BUSINESS OPTIONS

Analysis and reasoned recommendation for the base business options of: do nothing / do the minimal
or do something

Option title: | Do nothing — maintain the existing situation

Please provide brief details:

The do nothing option for these projects retains provision in existing buildings which are unsuitable and in one
example unsustainable. It doesn’t address the need to improve infrastructure to enhance settings to support
the delivery of a childcare offer in Denbighshire by co-locating provision on school sites.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver
Costs the same Takes the same to
deliver
Costs less X Is quicker to deliver X
Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality No impact on benefits
Is a lower quality X Worsens benefits X

What is the main reason this option has not been selected?

The deficiencies in current infrastructure would limit the ability of Denbighshire to support the delivery of
childcare in the County. In addition there is a significant risk that Welsh medium childcare in Rhyl and Denbigh
would be lost due to significant concerns regarding the existing facilities which would impact directly on the
implementation of the Councils own Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.

Option title: | Improve infrastructure with modular buildings
Please provide brief details:

Utilising modular buildings to deliver this project would allow the provision to be co-located on school sites in a
short timescale and enable provision to be located in suitable buildings.

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time,
Quality and Benefits:

Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver
Costs the same X Takes the same to
deliver
Costs less Is quicker to deliver X
Quality Improves the quality Benefits | Improves benefits
Is the same quality X No impact on benefits X
Is a lower guality Waorsens benefits

What is the main reason this option has not been selected?

Modular buildings have higher lifecycle costs in comparison to a permanent extension/new building as they will
require a significant investment / replacement after 20-30 years of use. It is already been identified that a
modular building would not be a suitable solution for the Oaktree site as it would reduce key external space.

8|Page

Page 122




Cyngor

5|r ddlnbych
= County CauRel v

EXPECTED BENEFITS

The benefits that the project will deliver expressed in measurable terms against the situation as it exists
prior to the project

e Ensure sustainability of Welsh medium childcare provision in Rhyl, Rhuddlan and Denbigh.
¢ Reduce the gaps in Welsh medium childcare as identified by the Childcare Sufficiency Audit.
e Create a new Welsh Medium Flying Start provision for 36 pupils over two sessions.

e Co locate childcare provision on three primary school sites.

e Provide additional capacity at the Oaktree centre for Wrap around care to meet demand.

e Create additional capacity to support existing childcare provision throughout the County.

¢ Increase the number of childcare providers in the Central area of Denbighshire.

e Provide support for developing weekend childcare for working parents.

EXPECTED DIS-BENEFITS

Outcomes perceived as negative by one or more stakeholders

Perception of subsidised childcare by DCC.

Creation of additional congestion due to increased use of the school sites.

TIMESCALE
Over which the project will run (summary of the Project Plan) and the period over which the
benefits will be realised

Date Milestone

30/9/2018 Submission of Bid to Welsh Government
31/12/2018 Confirmation of whether funding approved
31/05/2020 Feasibility Stage

30/09/2020 Design Stage Oaktree

30/03/2021 Design Stage Twm o’r Nant

31/05/2021 Design Stage Dewi Sant

30/08/2022 Works complete

* If projects correlate with Band B these timescales will be adjusted to run concurrently.

9|Page

Page 123



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych v}

Counfy Council

CAPITAL COSTS — BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed.
Note that even some Business Development Projects may have a requirement for capital costs, for
example to fund the acquisition of new ICT hardware or undertaking alterations to buildings.

e Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT
department

e Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or
Building Services

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project:

Enter details of cost element below: Total
Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc) N/A
Client side project management N/A
OTHER (please enter) N/A
OTHER (please enter) N/A
TOTAL N/A

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below: 2018/19 2019/20 Future All Years
Years Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)
Client side project management

ICT infrastructure and hardware

Building alterations

Design Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)
Furniture

Other professional support (legal, etc)
Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (gateway review,
etc)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

10|Page

Page 124



sir ddinbych
denbighshire @&

County Council

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources

Enter details of funding source Status: 2018/19 2019/20 Future TOTAL
Years

TOTAL

NOTE: For funding status, please only use the following categories:
Approved —written approval for the funding exists

Applied — no written approval exists but an application has been made

Approached - initial approach to or by funding body has been made but no application submitted

None — no contact or approach has been made to or by the funding body

Hiraoe Page 125



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych

CAPITAL COSTS — CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR CONSTRCTION PROJECTS
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed.

Counfy Council

2

e Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT

department.

e Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or

Building Services.

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project:

Enter details of cost element below:

Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)

Client side project management

OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

[ellellolle]le]

Project 1 - Cylch Provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant, Rhyl

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below:

2019/20

2020/21

Future
Years

All Years
Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)

Client side project management

£10,000

£8,000

£4,500

£ 22,500

Land/property acquisition

Land preparation/remediation

Demolition and/or site security

Construction, refurbishment or maintenance

£973,740

£973,740

BREEAM rating of “Excellent”

Security measures (CCTV, door entry, etc)

Fire prevention measures (sprinklers, etc)

External landscaping and other works

Land/property acquisition

Highways work

ICT infrastructure and hardware

£12,000

£12,000

Fixtures & fittings / Furniture

£24,667

£24,667

Planning/Building Regulation Costs

£2,500

£2,456

£4,956

Desigh Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)

£9,011

£33,590

£79,117

£121,718

Legal Costs and Fees

Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (eg gateway review)

OTHER - Client Contingency

£17,600

£17,600

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

£21,511

£44,046

£1,111,624

£1,177,181

12|Page

Page 126




Cyngor

S|r ddlnbych
 Colinty Caanci \/

Project 2 — Cylch Provision at Ysgol Twm o’r Nant, Denbigh

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below:

2019/20

2020/21

Future
Years

All Years
Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)

Client side project management

£10,000

£8,000

£4,500

£22,500

Land/property acquisition

Land preparation/remediation

Demolition and/or site security

Construction, refurbishment or maintenance

£716,804

£716,804

BREEAM rating of “Excellent”

Security measures (CCTV, door entry, etc)

Fire prevention measures (sprinklers, etc)

External landscaping and other works

Land/property acquisition

Highways work

ICT infrastructure and hardware

£12,000

£12,000

Fixtures & fittings

£27,133

£27,133

Planning/Building Regulation Costs

£2,500

£862

£3,362

Design Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)

£9,576

£50,320

£36,874

£96,770

Legal Costs and Fees

Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (eg gateway review)

OTHER - Client Contingency

OTHER (please enter)

TOTAL

£22,076

£59,182

£797,311

£878,569

Project 3 -

‘Little Acorns’ at the Oaktree Integrated Children’s Centre, Rhyl

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent):

Enter details of cost element below:

2019/20

2020/21

Future
Years

All Years
Total

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc)

Client side project management

£2,500

£10,000

£10,000

£22,500

Land/property acquisition

Land preparation/remediation

Demolition and/or site security

Construction, refurbishment or maintenance

£288,591

£760,830

£1,049,420

BREEAM rating of “Excellent”

Security measures (CCTV, door entry, etc)

Fire prevention measures (sprinklers, etc)

External landscaping and other works

Land/property acquisition

Highways work

ICT infrastructure and hardware,

£15,000

£15,000

Fixtures, fittings & furniture

£47,502

£47,502

Planning/Building Regulation Costs

£2,500

£3,100

£5,600

Design Team Fees (architects, QS, etc)

£19,040

£96,152

£15,986

£131,178

Legal Costs and Fees

Marketing/Consultation

External Project Support (eg gateway review)

OTHER - Client Contingency

£15,986

TOTAL

£24,040

£397,843

£865,304

£1,287,187

13|Page

Page 127




Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
¥ colrity Caanci v

Please note: The resource and education grants don’t involve construction and are distributed over 3
years.

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources

Enter details of funding source Status: 2019/20 2020/21 Future TOTAL
Years

Welsh Government — Childcare Approved £353,012 | £464,595 | £1,920,165 £2,737,772

Capital Grant

Welsh Government — Welsh Approved £713,051 £713,051

Language Capital Grant

TOTAL £3,450,823

REVENUE COST IMPACT
TO BE COMPLETED FOR ALL PROJECTS

In considering whether a project should be developed due regard should be made to the potential impact
on revenue budgets.

If the activity will result in a requirement for additional revenue funding, please provide details
below:

What is the impact of this project in terms of the annual Existing Post- Increase/
revenue requirement for: Revenue project Decrease
Budget Revenue
Budget

staff costs (salaries and associated)

energy costs (heating, lighting, ICT, etc)

property maintenance and servicing costs

other property related costs (rental, insurance, etc)

ongoing ICT costs (licences, etc)

mileage of Denbighshire fleet vehicles n/a n/a

mileage for business travel by Denbighshire employees Decrease
using their personal vehicles
OTHER (please enter)

OTHER (please enter)

OVERALL REVENUE REQUIREMENT

Please provide brief details of the revenue impact of this project:

o Where revenue savings are forecast, you should detail what is proposed for the saving (e.g.
reduction of an existing revenue budget, re-allocation of revenue to alternative services area,
etc)

l4|Page

Page 128



Cyngor

sir ddlnbych "?

Counfy Council

Where revenue increases are forecast, you should provide details of how the revenue shortfall
will be addressed. In this instance you should also append a three year surplus/deficit forecast.

Details of any one-off revenue cost requirements that may be required post-project
implementation (e.g. recruitment, redundancies, etc). DO NOT include any costs detailed in the

capital section of this Business Case

The provision of improved facilities will see a change in location for some settings which are independent
and supported by Mudiad Meithrin. The running costs for DCC settings will predominately come from
existing revenue sources with revenue for additional staff being generated by income from the enhanced
childcare offer.

The costs of maintaining the new buildings will be funded through rental income generated from
independent providers.

The cost of administrating the small grants fund (Streams 6 and 7) will come from existing staff resource.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Please provide details of proposed project management — Establishment of Project Board etc

The Project Management support from the projects will come from the Modernising Education Team who
will use Verto to manage and report on the projects. The role of Project Sponsor will be undertaken by the
relevant Head of Service. The main stakeholders within the project will be school, independent providers
and umbrella organisations. The supplier role will be undertaken by Design and Construction.

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS / HEALTH & SAFETY

This section should identify how the activity will help Denbighshire meet any of its statutory

requirements. Please include any Health & Safety Issues that the activity will address in this section.

Please leave blank if not applicable.

CARBON MANAGEMENT IMPACT

Please consult with Denbighshire’s Principal Energy Manager before completing this section.

Denbighshire has committed to reducing its carbon emissions by 15% by 2020. The Business Case
requires you to make a forecast for the anticipated carbon emissions impact of the project. Please mark

a cross in the appropriate box.

15|Page

Page 129



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
County Council v

Forecasts: Annual Carbon Annual Carbon Carbon
(current) Equivalent | (Post Equivalent | Variance
Project)
Energy consumption: TBC
(UNIT = kWh)
Mileage of Denbighshire Fleet vehicles: TBC

(UNIT = miles travelled)

Tonnes of waste produced going to landfill: TBC
(UNIT =tonnes)

Tonnes of waste produced being recycled: TBC
(UNIT =tonnes)

Mileage of Business Travel (personal TBC
vehicles):
(UNIT = miles travelled)

TOTAL CARBON EMISSIONS

Please provide brief details of the carbon impact of this project, and detail specific actions that will be
taken to reduce carbon emissions. If carbon emissions are expected to increase as a result of this
project, please provide details of proposed actions to compensate for this increase in other areas of the
Service’s activity.

The overall impact on Carbon emissions of the Council will be an increase due to the fact that none of the
proposed accommodation currently exist. The design brief for each project includes a requirement into
incorporating features such as energy saving measures and use of renewable energy in order to lessen
the impact.

In addition the co-locating of childcare facilities on school sites will potentially reduce the number of
journeys undertaken by parents and childcare providers collecting pupils from school.

BIODIVERSITY IMPACT
Please consult with Denbighshire’s Biodiversity Officer before completing this section:
joel.walley@denbighshire.gov.uk

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure compliance and enforcement of the habitats regulations (as
amended in 2007) and the NERC Biodiversity Duty (2006). At this pre-feasibility stage, what is the
anticipated impact on biodiversity of the project. Please mark a cross in the appropriate box.

Will this project impact on a habitat that supports living organisms Yes No X
(plant or animal)?

If you have answered yes to the above question, please complete all the following biodiversity sections.
If answered no please leave blank

THREATENED/PROTECTED SPECIES Yes No X
Will this project impact on any protected or threatened species as
defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP)?

16|Page

Page 130



Cyngor

SII‘ ddlnbych
¥ colrity Caanci v

ALL SPECIES (including threatened/protected)

Forecasts:

Current Post- Variance
number project (+/-)
number

Number of plant species present:

Number of animal species present:

TOTAL NUMBER OF SPECIES PRESENT

Please provide brief details of the action you will be taking in association with this project to protect or
enhance biodiversity. Specific reference should be made to the mitigation strategy if the project impacts
on any protected or threatened species as defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan

(LBAP).

been undertaken.

All construction work is proposed to take place on existing DCC sites which have been improved.
The wider Biodiversity issues on each site were considered during recent construction projects that have

MAJOR RISKS TO THE PROJECT

A summary of the key risks associated with the project together with the likely impact and plans should
they occur (Please also add to your project risk register)

Key Risk Likely Impact | Mitigating Action
Increased costs for the Will mean a Review costs at key milestones in the project.
project reduction in

elements of

the project

Failure to obtain planning
permission due to external
elements additional demands
on existing sites.

May impact on
pressures on
existing sites

Ensure full consultation with local residents prior to the
submission of any planning application.

Failure for third parties to buy | Reduced Ensure third parties are key stakeholders in the
into concept of project income for development of the project.
project
Impact of Covid 19 on the Changes in Review cost once tender is complete and work with
project cost and contractors to mitigate impact on the construction period.

duration of the
project.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Please list any supporting documents that accompany this Business Case

17|Page

Page 131



Cyngor

sir ddinbych «
denbighshire @

County Council

ANNUAL CAPITAL BIDS — BLOCK ALLOCATIONS

Please provide details of expenditure and commitments for allocations received in the current financial year.

COUNTY LANDLORD STATEMENT

Please provide a statement from the County Landlord and where applicable the recommendation of the
Asset Management Group

The proposals are supported. The paper demonstrates that reallocation of funding is based on
reviewed priorities and established needs. It is noted again that WG deadlines for funding applications
is detrimental to robust project planning, particularly in the early stages. Where appropriate, suitable
lease/licence arrangements should be put in place with external service providers.

Supplied by: David Lorey Date: 13/11/2020

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER STATEMENT

The proposals are supported from a financial perspective. The re-allocating of
underspent grant is welcome and the prioritisation processes in light of increased
costs appears to have been rigorous and results in proposals which remain consistent
with the services priorities and Welsh Government policy. As part of the prioritisation
an additional contingency of £108k has been identified.

Supplied by: Steve Gadd Date: 20 Nov 20

18| Page

Page 132



Cyngor

sir ddinbych
denbighshire @&

County Council

VERIFICATION:

Project
Manager:
Project
Sponsor:

Name: Position:

Signature: Date:

For use by Finance:

Result of S.I.G. Review

Date of Meeting

Approval

Code

wlraoe Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



Cyngor

sir ddinbych

-

2ires N i
1211 [ 1S V
_ounty Council

Childcare Capital Grant
projects

Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 515

Denbighshire was successful with the submission and was able to draw
down £2,907,772 from the Child Care Capital Grant for improvements in
facilities through construction projects. Following these approvals
feasibility work was commissioned for individual projects included in the
submission. As of the spring the cost estimates forecasted a cumulative
overspend of £1,012,934 across three projects - Oaktree Centre, Cylch

Brief description: provision at Ysgol Twm o’r Nant and Cylch provision at Ysgol Dewi Sant.
At the same time the approved project for the Welsh Language Centre
was projecting a financial underspend in the region of £700k. As a result
an application was submitted to Welsh Government seeking permission
to reallocate funding to enable these three projects to proceed by
reallocating the resources from the Welsh Language Centre and seeking
additional resources as a top up from the Welsh Government.

Date Completed: 18/09/2018 12:04:51 Version: 2
Completed by: James Wood
Responsible Service: Education & Children Services

Localities affected by

the proposal: Whole County,

Childcare Settings, eligible children and their parents & the Local
Education Authority - Early Education providers e.g. childcare settings &
schools.

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

Was this impact

assessment completed | Yes
as a group?

Page 135



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

* * * ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 20 / 30.

Implications of the score

The Education and Children Service has led on the grant for the County consulting with partners
including the Family Information Service and the Cwlwm organisations representing the childcare
sector in Denbighshire.

The Childcare Grant aims to support the implication of the Childcare Offer for Wales which aims to
allow eligible parents to have more employment choices, increase their disposable income to help
counteract poverty for those in low-paid jobs and ensure that quality early education and childcare is
provided to promote child development and school readiness.

Proceed with all three identified projects subject to the decision by Welsh Government to approve the
application to reallocate their funding will enable the identified benefits to be realised including
ensuring sufficiency of available childcare and safeguarding Welsh medium childcare provision in Rhyl
and Denbigh.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive &EE;L R

A resilient Denbighshire Neutral — : -.
A healthier Denbighshire Positive [IRSHSREE [ Aresiient |
A more equal Denbighshire Positive Langusge gy |
A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive A Weles o i By
A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Positive communities Waes
language A more equal

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive e

Main conclusions

This Wellbeing Assessment related to our proposals for an application to the Welsh Government
Childcare Capital Grant scheme. At this stage we are seeking input and approval from SIG regarding
these proposals which we are intended to have a positive impact a they are have all been developed
to address identified deficits in childcare in Denbighshire. The future sustainability and development
of the childcare sector has been our primary focus and our proposals aim to support the county and
sector in managing the expected increase in demand for childcare places as a result of the
implementation of the Childcare Offer for Wales.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

Page 136



W We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the

proposal
¥ We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the

proposal
I~ We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 137



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE

WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

The application has secured approximately £2.4 million investment in the
childcare sector in Denbighshire. The proposed project focus on securing
the sustainability of Welsh Language places and improving the
sustainability and quality of Foundation Phase Early Education provision.
The proposals support the wider aim to prepare for the implantation and
development of the Childcare Offer for Wales in Denbighshire over the
next 3 years.

We aim to maximise the potential benefits and mitigate the possible
negative impacts, such as displacement, through continued partnership
working and consultation with the Cwlwm Organisations representing the
childcare sector in Denbighshire. This will ensure that all proposal and
plans are considered from multiple aspects by stakeholders to identify
issues and negotiate solutions.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society Any new builds will include energy efficient technology.

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

In the main proposed projects are making best use of existing land e.g.
schools to create sustainability of a childcare setting.

If successful the grant funding will lead to the development and
sustainability of the childcare sector, securing and creating jobs, both in
the short term (in terms of building works0 and long term in terms of the
childcare sector.

The small grants schemes for Childminder and the Foundation Phase Early
Education will aim to develop literacy and numeracy skills, early
communication skills, to promote Digital Literacy and Digital
Responsibility, and to enhance and develop the outdoor learning
environment which would in turn support the development of physical
literacy skills . The bid for the Oaktree Centre also contains a proposal to
develop the Integrated Childcare Centre as a centre of excellence which
will support the childcare workforce in Denbighshire by provide training
and advice to settings.

The projects will support the sustainability and grown of the childcare
sector in Denbighshire.

The projects will secure and grow the number of childcare places in
Denbighshire, providing more choice for parents.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

The building works will lead to increase emissions in some localities for a
short period of time. There will be a transfer of road traffic to the new
locations and possibly an small increase in those settings that are
successful in the bid.

Page 138



Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

There is a small chance of displacement of children from one setting to
another, causing a negative impact on a childcare setting. However, this
has been discussed for each proposed project and will be reviewed in
consultation with Childcare organisation and local settings if the
application is successful.

There is a small chance of displacement of children from one setting to
another, causing a negative impact on a childcare setting. However, this
has been discussed for each proposed project and will be reviewed in
consultation with Childcare organisation and local settings if the
application is successful.

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Neutral

All projects are taking place on existing sites and the impact on
biodiversity is minimal as all sites are already developed land.

The flood consequence assessments has impacted the design for each
building and have mitigated each site.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

These will be assessed for those applications that are successful where
possible the design with address any negative impact identified.

These will be assessed for those applications that are successful where
possible the design with address any negative impact identified.

For those projects involving a relocation of a childcare setting the
processing of waste generated by the setting e.g. nappies, food waste,
paper and cardboard will be considered to ensure sustainable waste
management systems are considered and impended.

Some of the application may lead to a reduction in fuel/energy
consumption. Two of thee applications relate to the relocation of provision
due to unsuitable venues in poor condition. These moves to purpose built
venues will be significantly more energy efficient than the current venues,
mainly old chapel buildings.

Not considered applicable.

These will be assessed for those applications that are successful where
possible the design with address any negative impact identified.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 139



Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

Potentially there could be negative impacts but these would need to be
explored for those projects which are awarded grant funds to develop.

Potentially there could be negative impacts but these would need to be
explored for those projects which are awarded grant funds to develop.

The re-location of any setting will lead to an increase in waste produced in
one location. This will impact on existing waste management processes
that exist on the sites that are being developed.

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

There will be an increase in children accessing good quality childcare and
holiday activities in settings with suitable facilities, such as outdoor play
and kitchens to prepare healthy meals and snacks.

N/A

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good

quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

The applications for grant funding are to secure more suitable venues for
childcare provision and to secure funding to develop Early Education
provision. These projects all contain the potential to support children to
access opportunities for outdoor play and will be governed by policies,
such as the healthy pre-school initiative, that focus on healthy food and
exercise.

Several of the projects that form part of this application will possibly lead
to more children having access to good quality health food when attending
these provisions.

Several of the projects that are part of the application aim to increase
access to childcare during the school holidays. These will contain a focus
on play, creative and physical activity, including games, sport, swimming,
dancing and other activities associated with play schemes.

These projects will also aim to create social, emotional and language
development skills as a core part of their provision.

N/A

Several of the projects that are part of the application aim to increase
access to childcare during the school holidays. These will contain a focus
on play, creative and physical activity, including games, sport, swimming,
dancing and other activities associated with play schemes.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 140



A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

None

None

None

N/A

None

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

The Childcare offer will provide additional support to childcare settings to
deliver accessible provision for children with additional needs.

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

The Childcare Offer is available to all eligible parents and has been
designed in such a way to take account of the barriers that may face
eligible parents who have children with SEN. To ensure the offer is
inclusive to eligible children with SEN for the early implementation period
additional support will be available.

Two elements of the grant funding being applied for are small grant
schemes which settings will be able to apply for small grants for
equipment. This would include equipment that improved accessibility or
inclusivity in a setting, provides specific support to a child with additional
needs and/or to provide staff working at these settings with training in the
skills needed to care for children who need additional support.

The Childcare Offer is available to working parents of 3 and 4 years olds,
although there are exceptions where children would be eligible for the
Childcare Offer even if the parent are not in work. These would be if one
parent has significant caring responsibilities or if one parent is disabled or
incapacitated based on receipt of specific benefits.

The Childcare Offer is a provision available to all working parents of 3 and
4 year olds.

The Childcare Offer is a Universal provision available to all working
parents of 3 and 4 year olds.

The Childcare Offer will provide significant support for those in-work
poverty. The Childcare Offer can provide savings of up to £5,000 per child
for eligible children.

Page 141



Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer The children of parents who do not work will not be able to access the
discrimination or Childcare Offer and as such their children may not benefit from the
disadvantage programme.

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Positive

Additional childcare, particularly where it is co-located with a primary
school have the potential to improve links within the local community.
Three of the proposals relate to not for profit childcare provision which will

Justification for be governed by a committee drawn from the local community which will

impact help to integrate the childcare setting into the wider community. All the
settings proposed must be registered with the Care Inspectorate Wales
who will regulate and inspect settings regarding, safeguarding children
and qualifications of staff.

Further actions The potential negative impacts of the re-location or expansion of the
required settings will be addressed through the planning process.

Positive impacts identified:

More children will have access to childcare. Children having involvement
outside the family environment is a protective factor. The setting
providing childcare will be regulated and inspected by the Care
Inspectorate Wales, including issues such as qualifications of staff and
processes to safeguard children.

Safe communities
and individuals

Page 142



The provision that the grant funding is being applied for will primarily
support young families. However these settings, particularly those co-
located with primary schools have the potential to become informal

Community community hubs.

participation and

resilience Three of the proposals relate to not for profit childcare provision which will

be governed by a committee drawn from the local community. This will
help to integrate the childcare setting into the wider community.

The attractiveness of Childcare settings are generally colourful and attractive buildings and
the area grounds.

Several of the proposals in the applications will improve access to
Connected childcare and potentially reduce travel for some families by relocating
communities current provisions and co-locating them in schools providing the benefit of

wrap-around childcare provision that does not currently exist.

Rural resilience

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of Some people may be unhappy about increased noise from children playing
the area outside at these new settings.

Some parents may have to travel slightly further to access their current
childcare provision. However given the proposed distances we believe this
is negligible.

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Positive

The funding will increase the number of 3 and 4 year olds accessing Welsh
Medium childcare which will give children a good grounding in Welsh
Language from which to develop in their later education. Bilingualism
offers children the opportunity to experience two different cultures and
enrich their Welsh identity. Welsh-medium education will ensure that
children grow to be completely bilingual and open up a rich world of
culture, and opportunities.

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive impacts identified:

6 of the 7 elements of the expression of interest relate to securing or
expending the deliver of Welsh Medium Childcare in Denbighshire.

People using Welsh  We believe that, if successful in securing funding, this will increase the
number of 3 and 4 year olds accessing Welsh Medium childcare which will
give children a good grounding in Welsh Language from which to develop

in their later educatip:age 143



Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

Please see above.

3 of the settings forming part of our application will be supported by
Mudiad Meithrin.

Mudiad Meithrin is a voluntary organisation and is the main provider of
Welsh-medium early years care and education in the voluntary sector.
Our aim is to give every young child in Wales the opportunity to benefit
from early years care and education experiences through the medium of
Welsh.

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Justification for
impact

Further actions
required

Positive

The Childcare Offer is likely to lead to an increase in children attending
childcare which will create more jobs within the childcare sector in
Denbighshire. Element of the grant funding aim to support development
within the Welsh Medium and Childminder parts or the sector, specifically.

The Childcare Offer and several of the proposals we are applying for
Capital Funding for are likely to impact on three of the corporate priorities
- Young People, Resilient Communities and Connected Communities.
Young families will have access to government funded childcare (for 3 and
4 years olds) to enable them to have more choice in employment. The
Childcare offer will be worth around £5,000 a year per child for those
working families which will have a significant impact on their family
finance and improved resilience. The proposed project also have a specific
focus on developing new provision in areas that currently lack childcare
services, in particular rural and disadvantaged areas and on supporting
the co-location of existing Foundation Phase provision with the new
Childcare Offer provision on a single site, which will improve the provision
of wrap around childcare.

None identified.

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

The Childcare Offer is likely to lead to an increase in children attending
childcare which will create more jobs within the childcare sector in
Denbighshire. Element of the grant funding aim to support development
within the Welsh Medium and Childminder parts or the sector, specifically.

The Welsh Government adopted the United Nations Convention on the
Rights of the Child (UNCRC) as the basis for policy making for children and
young people in Wales in 2004. The UNCRC had underpinned the
development of the Welsh Government Free Childcare Offer.

Page 144



Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

The Childcare Offer and several of the proposals we are applying for
Capital Funding for are likely to impact on three of the corporate priorities
- Young People, Resilient Communities and Connected Communities.
Young families will have access to government funded childcare (for 3 and
4 years olds) to enable them to have more choice in employment. The
Childcare offer will be worth around £5,000 a year per child for those
working families which will have a significant impact on their family
finance and improved resilience. The proposed project also have a specific
focus on developing new provision in areas that currently lack childcare
services, in particular rural and disadvantaged areas and on supporting
the co-location of existing Foundation Phase provision with the new
Childcare Offer provision on a single site, which will improve the provision
of wrap around childcare.

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



/T abed

Cabinet Forward Work Plan

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet | Author — Lead member and
Decision contact officer
required
(yes/no)

19 Jan 1 Housing Rent Setting & To seek approval for the Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Housing Revenue and Capital proposed annual rent Hill / Geoff Davies
Budgets 2021/22 increase for council housing
and to approve the Housing
Revenue Account Capital
and Revenue Budgets for
2021/22 and Housing Stock
Business Plan
2 Budget 2021/22 — Final To consider a report setting | Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Proposals out proposals to finalise the Hill / Steve Gadd
budget for 2021/22
3 DCC'’s Climate and Ecological To consider the final DCC’s | Tbc Councillor Brian Jones /
Change Strategy (2021/22 — Climate and Ecological Helen Vaughan-Evans
2029/30) Change Strategy (2021/22 —
2029/30) and recommend to
Council its adoption
4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Thbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
current financial position of Hill / Steve Gadd
the Council
5 Items from Scrutiny Committees | To consider any issues Thc Scrutiny Coordinator
raised by Scrutiny for
Cabinet’s attention
16 Feb |1 | Contract Procedures Rules | To consider the reviewed | The | Councillor Julian Thompson-

/. Wa}| epuaby



81T abed

Cabinet Forward Work Plan

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet | Author — Lead member and
Decision contact officer
required
(yes/no)

contract procedures rules Hill / Lisa Jones
which will require adoption
and form part of the council
constitution
Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
current financial position of Hill / Steve Gadd
the Council
Items from Scrutiny Committees | To consider any issues Thc Scrutiny Coordinator
raised by Scrutiny for
Cabinet’s attention
23 March Awel Y Dyffryn Extra Care To seek approval to appoint | Yes Councillor Bobby Feeley / Phil
Housing — Appointment of Care | 2 care providers for ECH Gilroy / Emily Jones-Davies
Providers older persons and Learning
Disability
Corporate Plan (Oct to Dec) To consider a performance Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
update on the Corporate Hill / lola McGregor
Plan
Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
current financial position of Hill / Steve Gadd
the Council
Items from Scrutiny Committees | To consider any issues Thc Scrutiny Coordinator

raised by Scrutiny for
Cabinet’s attention




61T abed

Cabinet Forward Work Plan

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet | Author — Lead member and
Decision contact officer
required
(yes/no)

27 April Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
current financial position of Hill / Steve Gadd
the Councll
Items from Scrutiny Committees | To consider any issues Thc Scrutiny Coordinator
raised by Scrutiny for
Cabinet’s attention
25 May Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
current financial position of Hill / Steve Gadd
the Council
Items from Scrutiny Committees | To consider any issues Thc Scrutiny Coordinator
raised by Scrutiny for
Cabinet’s attention
29 June Annual Performance Review To consider the Annual Thc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Performance Review Hill / 1olo McGregor
Finance Report To update Cabinet on the Councillor Julian Thompson-
current financial position of Hill / Steve Gadd
the Council
Items from Scrutiny Committees | To consider any issues Thc Scrutiny Coordinator

raised by Scrutiny for




0GT abed

Cabinet Forward Work Plan

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet | Author — Lead member and
Decision contact officer
required
(yes/no)

\ Cabinet’s attention
Note for officers — Cabinet Report Deadlines
Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline
January 5 January February 2 February March 9 March

Updated 30/11/2020 - KEJ

Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc




Agenda Iltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 DCC COMMUNITY BENEFITS POLICY
	COMMUNITY BENEFITS POLICY DOCUMENT APPENDIX 1
	COMMUNITY BENEFITS POLICY WBIA APPENDIX 2
	Community Benefits Policy
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	6 FINANCE REPORT
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 1 Revenue Budget Summary
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 2 Service Variance Analysis
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 3 Capital Plan Summary
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 4 Major Projects Update
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 5 Business Case for SIG Schools Maintenance Grant 2020 Final
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 6 Schools Grant List
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 7 Well Being Impact Assessment- School Maintenance Grant
	School Maintenance Grant
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:




	FINANCE REPORT - APP 8 WG Flood Funding Business Case
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 9 FLOOD Detailed List
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 10 WG Flood Funding WIA
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 11 Childcare Business Case Final
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 12 WIA  Childcare
	Childcare Capital Grant projects
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	7 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	8 ASBESTOS REMOVAL CONTRACT AWARD
	ASBESTOS REMOVAL CONTRACT - APP 1 EVALUATION REPORT


